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To the Members of Delhi International Airport Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Delhi International Airport Limited 
('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (,Ind 
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31 March 2023, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143( 10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

4 . Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jUdgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 

Ke audit matters 
Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments 

Refer note 3(q) for the accounting policy and note 
7, 39 and 40 for the financial presentation and 
disclosures in the accompanying standalone 
financial statements. 

The Company has entered into derivative 
financial instruments i.e. , call spread options and 

How our audit addressed the ke audit matter 
Our audit procedures to test the valuation of the 
derivative financial instruments included but were not 
limited to the following: 

• Assessed and tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's key internal 
controls over derivative financial instruments and 
the related hedge accounting; 
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coupon only hedge, to hedge its foreign currency 
risks in relation to the long-term bonds issued in 
foreign currency. 

Management has designated these derivative 
financial instruments and the aforesaid debt at 
initial recognition as cash flow hedge relationship 
as per Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. 

The valuation of hedging instrument is complex 
and necessitates a sophisticated system to 
record and track each contract and calculate the 
related valuations at each financial reporting 
date. Since valuation of hedging instruments and 
consideration of hedge effectiveness involves 
both significant assumptions and judgements 
such as market observable inputs and 
involvement of management's valuation 
specialist, and therefore, is subject to an inherent 
risk of error. 

We have identified valuation of hedging 
instruments as a key audit matter in view of the 
aforesaid significant judgements, assumptions 
and complexity involved. 
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• Reviewed the management's documentation for 
the designated hedge instrument which defines 
the nature of hedge relationship; 

• Considered the consistent application of the 
accounting policies and assessed the hedge 
accounting methodologies applied; and 
compared these to the requirements of Ind AS 
109, Financial Instruments; 

• Evaluated the management's valuation 
specialist's professional competence, expertise 
and objectivity; 

• Tested the accuracy of input data provided by the 
management to the external valuation specialist 
and assessed the reasonability of the 
assumptions used, while valuing the hedging 
instruments; 

• Involved our valuation specialist to test the fair 
values of derivative financial instruments and 
compared the results to the management's 
results; 

• Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of 
the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements in accordance with the applicable Ind 
AS. 

Capitalisation for airport expansion Our audit procedures to assess appropriate 
capitalization of such expenditure included, but were 

Refer note 3(d) for the accounting policy and Note not limited to the following: 
42(0) for the financial disclosures in the 
accompanying standalone financial statements • 
The Company is in the process of expansion of 
the Indira Gandhi International Airport ('Delhi • 
Airport') with a plan to incur an amount of INR 
11,550 crores. Till 31 March 2023, the Company 
has incurred ~ 9,457 .81 crores (excluding capital 
advances) as capital expenditure towards such 
capital expansion. • 

Determining whether expenditure meets the • 
capitalization criteria, speCifically with regard to 
whether they are operational or capital in nature, • 
involves significant management judgement in 
assessing whether capitalization is in line with Ind 
AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and the 
Company's accounting policy . 

Further, the tariff determination by Airport 
Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA) for 
control periods for the aeronautical services is 
linked to the Regulated Asset Base, which is 
based on the fixed asset balance and considering 
these additions are significant to the regulated 
asset base of the Company, we have assessed 
inappropriate capitalization as a significant risk as 
part of our audit strateqy. 

• 

Assessed the design and implementation and 
tested the operating effectiveness of key 
controls surrounding the capitalization of costs. 
Reviewed management's capitalization policy, 
including application of the aforesaid policy, to 
assess consistency with the requirements set 
out by Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 
Compared the additions with the budgets and 
the orders given to the vendors . 
Ensured that the borrowing cost capitalized is as 
per Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs. 
Tested the additions on a sample basis for their 
nature and purpose to ensure that the 
capitalization is as per company's accounting 
policy. 
Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of 
the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements in accordance with the 
applicable Ind AS. 
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Such, the aforementioned capital expenditure 
has been funded from the specific borrowings 
raised. Accordingly, the borrowing cost incurred 
on such borrowings have been included as a 
capital expenditure in accordance with the 
provisions of Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs. 

Owing to the above factors, we have identified 
this as a key audit matter due to the significance 
of the capital expenditure incurred during the 
year. 
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Monthly Annual Fee to Airport Authority of 
India (AAI) 

Our audit procedures for the assessment of ongoing 
litigation 1 arbitration proceedings in relation to MAF 
fee included but were not limited to the following: 

Refer note 35(I)(h) for the financial disclosures in 
the accompanying standalone financial. 
statements. 

The Company has ongoing litigation I arbitration 
proceedings with Airport Authority of India (AAI) 
in respect of Monthly Annual Fee (MAF) for the 
period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2022 for which 
the Company has sought to be excused from 
making payment to AAI as triggered from a force 
majeure event, which could have a significant • 
impact on the accompanying standalone financial 
statements, if the potential exposure were to 
materialize. Further, the application of Ind AS to 
determine the amount, if any, to be provided as a 
liability or disclosed as a contingent liability, is 
inherently subjective. 

The outcome of such litigation larbitration 
proceedings is currently uncertain and the 
aforesaid assessment requires significant 
judgement by the management including 
interpretation of legal rights and obligations 
arising out of the underlying Operation, 
Management and Development Agreement 
dated 4 April 2006 entered with AAI, which 
required involvement of both management's and 
auditor's experts. Accordingly, this matter has 
been determined as a key audit matter for current 
year audit. 

The above matter is also considered fundamental 
to the understanding of the users of the 
accompanying standalone financial statements 
on account of the uncertainties relating to the 
future outcome of the proceedings/litigation. 

• 

• 

Obtained an understanding of management's 
process and evaluated design, implementation 
and operating effectiveness of management's 
key internal controls over assessment of 
litigationl arbitration proceedings and 
determination of appropriate accounting 
treatment in accordance with the requirements of 
Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent liabilities and 
Contingent Assets. 
Obtained and read the summary of litigation 
involved in respect of MAF payable, the 
supporting documentation including 
communications exchanged between the parties, 
and held discussions with the management of the 
Company to understand management's 
assessment of the matter; 
Evaluated the legal opinions obtained by the 
management from its internal and external legal 
expert on the likelihood of the outcome of the said 
contingencies and potential impact of ongoing 
litigationl arbitration proceedings and amount 
paid under protest, basis our understanding of 
the matter obtained as above, and held further 
discussions, as required, with such experts to 
seek clarity of their legal assessments. 
Involved our independent expert to validate the 
assessment of the likelihood of the outcome of 
contingencies and potential impact of ongoing 
litigationl arbitration proceedings and amount 
paid under protest in order to assess the basis 
used for determination of appropriateness of the 
accounting treatment and resulting disclosures in 
the standalone financial statements in 
accordance with the requirements of applicable 
Ind AS. 
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

6. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

7. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of 
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 
133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

8. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

9. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements. 

11 . As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances . Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern . If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern; and 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; 

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

15. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
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17. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we 
report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial 
statements; 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. the Company, as detailed in note 35(1) to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the 
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023; 

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023; 

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023; 

iv. 
a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

note 32(g) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (,the 
intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
note 32(h) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company 
from any persons or entities , including foreign entities ('the Funding Parties'), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
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c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not dec1ared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

vi. . Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use 
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software 
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financiai year beginning on 1 April 2023 and 
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year. 

y~~ 
Danish Ahmed 
Partner 
Membership No. : 522144 
UDIN: 23522144BGZHNA4289 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26 May 2023 

For K. S. Rao & Co . 
. Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 0031095 

Sudarshana Gupta M S 
Partner 
Membership No: 223060 
UDIN: 23223060BGXIQV2846 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26 May 2023 
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the 
members of Delhi International Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2023 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets. 

(8) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and 
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a 
phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this 
programme, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified 
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties 
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of 
the lessee) are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of Use assets 
or intangible assets during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of 8enami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and 
rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during 
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is 
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory 
were noticed as compared to book records. 

(b) As disclosed in note 32(k) to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been 
sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore by banks based on the security of 
current assets. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed 
by the Company with such banks and such statements are in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company for the respective periods, which were subject to review. 

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the 
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be 
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) 
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the 
members of Delhi International Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2023 (Cont'd) 

made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion 
that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. 
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed 
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax , duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight 
delays in a few cases. Undisputed amounts payables in respect thereof, which were 
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable are as follows: 

Statement of arrears of statutory d ues outstan d ing or more t an SIX mont s: f h h 
Name of the Nature of the dues Amount Period to which Due Date Date of 

statute (f crores) the amount Payment 
relates 

Income Tax Tax deducted at 0.55 Financial year 30 April 2022 29 April 2023 
Act, 1961 source ended 31 March 

2022 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues 
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities 
on account of any dispute except for the following : 

Statement of Disputed Dues 
Name of the Nature of Dues Gross Amount paid Period to Forum where 

Statue amount under protest which the dispute is 
(f crores) (f crores) amount pending 

relates 
Cantonment Property tax 4,330.43 8.00 Financial year Delhi High Court 
Act, 2006 2016-17 to 

2020-21 
Income Tax Income tax 42 .90 - Assessment Delhi High Court 
Act, 1961 year 2008-09 

Income Tax Income tax 21.39 - Assessment Income Tax 
Act, 1961 year 2007-08 Appellate 

Tribunal 

Finance Act, Service tax 54.31 - Financial year Supreme 
1994 2010-11 Court 

Finance Act Service tax 9.86 - Financial year Commissioner of 
1994 2009-10 to Service Tax 

2013-14 

Finance Act, Service tax 2.35 - Financial year Commissioner of 
1994 2009-10 to Service tax, New 

2012-13 Delhi 

Finance Act, Service tax 1.58 - Financial year Commissioner of 
1994 2006-07 to Service tax, New 

2009-10 Delhi 
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the 
members of Delhi International Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2023 (Cont'd) 

Name of the Nature of Dues Gross Amount paid Period to Forum where 
Statue Amount under protest which the dispute is 

(~ crores) (~ crores) amount pending 
relates 

Finance Act, Service tax 1.30 - Financial year Additional 
1994 2016-17 to Commissioner 

2017-18 Central Excise, 
Service tax & GST 
Delhi South 
Commissionerate 

Finance Act, Service tax 0.07 - Financial year Commissioner of 
1994 2011-12 (April- Service tax, New 

June 2010J Delhi 
Finance Act, Service tax 0.22 - Financial year Commissioner 
1994 2011-12 (Appeals) of 

Service Tax, New 
Delhi 

Delhi Value Value added tax 1.48 - Financial year Assistant 
Added Tax 2010-11 Commissioner 
Act, 2004 (Special Zone), 

DVAT 
Foreign Trade Served From 0.30 - Financial year Additional Director 
(Development India Scheme 2009-10 General of 
and Regulation) scrips pertaining Foreign Trade, 
Act, 1992 to destuffing New Delhi 

activity on the 
import of goods 

Customs Act, Customs duty 0.12 - Financial year Additional 
1962 2009-10 Commissioner of 

Customs 

*Matters disputed under Income Tax Act 1961, wherein disallowances result In reduction In 

'returned (ass' as per the return of income have not been considered for above disclosure . Tax 
impact of reduction in (ass amounts to Rs. 54.02 crares. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received from 
banks and other lenders and representation received from the management of the Company, 
and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a 
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by 
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though 
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in readily 
realisable liquid investments. 
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(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short 
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its joint ventures or associate companies. 

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or no material fraudon the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the period covered by our audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to 
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act 
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit. 

(c) The whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year, as shared with us by 
the management have been considered by us while determining the nature, timing and extent of 
audit procedures. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions 
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an 
internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the 
period under audit. 

(xv) 
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(xvi)(a)The Company is not required to be registered under sectiQn 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

(b) Based on the iniorm8tion and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of ' 
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016) has two CICs as part of the Group. 

\xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on ·the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans 
of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as 
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the 
immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount 
under suboosection (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of 
said clause under this report. 

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26 May 2023 

For K. S. Rao & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 003109S 

Sudarshana Gupta M S 
Partner 
Membership No: 223060 
UDIN: 23223060BGXIQV2846 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26 May 2023 
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Annexure B 

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone 
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act') 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Delhi International Airport limited 
('the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial 
Controls 

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial 
Statements 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of 
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

) 
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles . 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
.procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and cispositions of the assets of the Gompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are iE:corded !:1S necessary t,. permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

. with qenerally accepted i3r.countmg principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
bemq made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
;ii'ovide reasonable assurance rp.garding prevention or timely fietection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or rlisposition of the company's assets that couid have a material effect on the financial statements 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial r.Olltrols with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
ctIJeto error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
fnancial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
:nternal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
. reference to financial statemRnts and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based 
on the internal financial controis with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
c'insidering the essential cO~Tl;Jonents of internal controi stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
r;:13ilciai Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 

y .... ~ 
Danish Ahmed 
Partner 
tvler'lbership No : 522144 
i T)iN~ 23522144BGZH!\IA4~·.o9 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26 May 2023 

For K. S. Rao & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 0031098 

Sudarshana Gupta M S 
Partner 
Membership No:. 223060 
!JOIN: 23223060BGXIQV2846 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26 May 2023 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLCI46936 
Standalone Balance Sheet a. at March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 

NOD-current anets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work In progress 
Intangible assets 
Right-of-use assets 
Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Other finaneial.assets 

Other non-current assets 
Non-eurrent tax assets 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Bank balance other than cash and eash equivalents 
(v) Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABiLiTIES 

Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 

(i) Retained earnings 
(i i) Cash flow hedge reserve 

Non·current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Lease liabili ties 
(iii) Other finaneialliabilities 

Deferred revenue 
Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non·current liabilit ies 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Lease liabilities 
(iii) Trade payables 

-Totol outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 3mall emerprise3 
. Total oUlstanding dues of creditors other than miero enterprises 
and small enterprises 

(iv) Other financial liabili ties 
Deferred revenue 
Other current liabilities 
Provisions 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Suounary of Significant accounting policies 

Notes 

4 
42(0) 

5 
42(1) 

6 

10 

6.3 
II 
12 
\3 

14 

15 
15 

16 
42(1) 

17 
18 
22 
9 
19 

20 
42(1) 

21 

17 
18 
19 
22 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone finaneia1s statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 001 076N1N5000 I 3 

52.:.~ 
Partner 
Membership no: 522144 
Plaee: New Delhi 
Date: May 26. 2023 

As per our report of even date 
For K.S. Rao & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 0031095 

Sudarshana Gupta M S 
Partner 
Membership no: 223060 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 26. 2023 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

6.45331 6.142.50 
8.08288 5.537.69 

355.25 364.19 
10.80 12.26 

249.45 254.61 
1.2574 1 1,134.43 
2. 163.65 2.86071 

10.48 5.06 
18,583.23 16,311.45 

5.53 7.23 

914.25 775 .65 
76.80 158.98 

27909 1,282.93 
47.27 216.63 

590.16 238.42 
177.06 220.23 

2,090.16 2,900.07 

20,673.39 19J11.52 

2,450.00 2,450.00 

(291.59) (491) 
(38289) (72.98) 
1,775.52 2,372.11 

12.614.18 10.960. 76 
8.59 10.51 

1)0509 1.168.65 
2,130.44 2.210.41 

3.06 6.59 

185.45 177.89 
16,246.81 14,534.81 

22.00 
3.99 3.89 

36.02 37.43 
41002 269.21 

1.561.10 1,434.76 
190.70 19204 
296.65 192.28 
152.58 152.99 

2,651.06 2,304.60 

18,897.87 16,839.41 

20,673.39 19J11.52 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Delhi International Airport Limited 

Videh Kumar Jaipuriar 
Chief Exeeutive Officer 

Company Seeretary 

Place: New Delhi 

Date · May 26. 2023 

, ..... ;ie... 
Executive Direetor 
D/N-03482239 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total revenue 

II Expenses 
Annual fee to Airports Authority oflndia (AAl) 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Finance costs 
Other· expenses 

Total expenses 

III (Loss)/ profit before exceptional items 
IV Exceptional items 
V (Loss)/ profit before tax expenses (lll)-(IV)) 

Current tax 
Current tax - earlier years 

Deferred tax reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve on account of hedge settlement 
Total tax expense 

(Loss)/ profit for the year 

VI Other comprehensive income 
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect 

B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 
Net movement of cash flow hedges 
Income tax effect 

Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (A+B) 

Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 

Earnings per equity share: (nominal value of share Rs. 10 (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 10») 

(I) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

Summary of Significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financials statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 001076NIN500013 

~::A~ 
Partner 

Membership no: 522144 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 26, 2023 

As per our report of even date 
For K.S. Rao & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 0031 09S 

Sudarshana Gupta M S 
Partner 
Membership no: 223060 
Place: New Delhi 
Date : May 26, 2023 

Notes 

23 
24 

25 

26 
27 

28 

29 

9 
9 
9 

34(c) 

30 

31 
31 

3 

March 31, 2023 

3,989.97 
264.30 

4,254.27 

1,857.67 

251.98 
655 .79 
810.32 

896.52 
4,472.28 

(218 .01) 

59.30 
(277.31) 

7.55 

7.55 

(284.86) 

( 1.82) 

(309.91 ) 

(311 .73) 

(596.59) 

( 1.\6) 
(\ .16) 

March 31, 2022 

2,914.07 
143.27 

3,057.34 

192.70 

228.45 
588.29 
862.48 
779.22 

2,651.14 

406.20 

378.43 

27.77 

10.46 

(0.37) 

10.09 

17.68 

(0.12) 

( 198.85) 

(198.97) 

(181.29) 

0 .07 
0.07 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Delhi International Airport Limited 

n::~ . u ~'£ging Director 

DIN-00061686 

~~~ 
Videh Kumar Jaipuriar 

ief Executive Officer 

Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 26, 2023 

"d.tj:::.~ R .. 
Executive Director 
DIN-03482239 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLCl46936 
Standalone Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

1) As at March 31,2023 

Balance as at April I, 2022 
Changes in equity share capital due to 

prior period errors 
2450.00 -

(2) As at March 31, 2022 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 
Changes in equity share capital due to 

prior period errors 
2,450.00 

B. Other Equity 

(1) As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Balance as at April I, 2022 
Loss for the year 
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 
Balance as at March 31,2023 

2) As at March 31 2022 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 
Profit for the year 
Reclassified to statement of profit and loss account of hedge settlement 
Deffer tax on above reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve on account of hedge settlement 
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 
Balance as at March 31,2022 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financials statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

As per our report of even date 
For K.S. Rao & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

-

Restated balance as at Changes during the 
April 1 2022 current period 

2,450.00 -

Restated balance as at Changes during the 
April 1 2021 curren(period 

2,450.00 -

Reserves and Surplus Effective portion of 
Retained Earnings Cash Flow Hedges 

(refer note IS) Jrefer note 15) 
(4.91) (72.98) 

(284.86) -
0.82) (309.91 , 

(291.59) (382.89) 

Reserves and Surplus Effective portion of 

Retained Earnings Cash Flow Hedges 

Jrefer note 15) (refer note 15) 
(22.47) 127.29 
17.68 -

- ( 1.05) 
- (0.37) 

(0.12) (198.85) 
(4.91) (72.98) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Delhi International Airport Limited 

Firm Registration No. : 001076NfN500013 

J?::~ 
Firm Registration No. : 003109S 

~!r-
W !:g:; Director 

Sudarshana Gupta M S '"d".;1~ ~" Partner 
Membership no: 522144 
Place: New Delhi 
Date : May 26, 2023 

DlN-00061686 

Videh Kumar Jaipuriar 
hief Executive Officer 

~ 
A hishek Chawla 
Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi 
Date : May 26, 2023 

Executive Director 
DlN-03482239 

Balance as at 
March 31 2023 

2,450.00 

Balance as at 
March 31 2022 

2,450.00 

Total 

(77.89) 
(284.86) 

J311.73) 
(674.48) 

Total 

104.82 
17.68 
( 1.05) 
(0.37) 

( 198.97) 
(77.89) 



Delhi Internalional Airport Limited 
ClN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Slandalone Cash Flow Stalemenl for tbe year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts In Rupees Crore, except otberwise stated) 

Casb flow from operating activities 
(Loss)/ profit before tax 

Adjustmenl 10 reconcile (loss)1 profil before tax to nel cash flows 
Deprecialion and amortisation expenses 
Provision for doubtful debls / bad debls written off 
Reversal of lease revenue (Refer note 42(k) & 42(n» 

Inlerest receivable written off (Refer note 42 (b» 
Provision for impainnem in value ofnon·currem inveslUlent [Refer note 35 (lI\)(ii)(b») 
Non-current investment written off 
Interest income on deposits/current investment 
Exchange differences unrealised (net) 
Gain on sale of current investments-Mutual fund 
Loss on discard of capital work ill progress and property, planl and equipmenls 
Profit on sale of property. plant and equipment 
Profit on relinqusbment of assets rights 
Dividend income on non-eurrent investments carried at C()st 
Interest on borrow ings 
Call spread option premium 
Other borrowing costs 
Redemption premium on borrow ings 
Rent expenses on financial assels carried at amortised cost 
Provision against advance to Airports Authority of India (AAI) [refer note 35(1)(h) & (i») 
Interest expenses on financial liability carried at amortised C()st 
Deferred ineome on financial liabilities carried at amortised C()st 
Fair value gain on fmancial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
Interest inC()me on financial asset carried at amortised cost 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Working capital adjustment: 

Change in non-current financial liabilities 
Change in non-current deferred revenue 
Change in other non-current liabilities 
Change in non-currenl provisions 
Change in trade payables 
Change in eurrent financial liabilities 
Change in deferred revenue 
Cbange in other current liabilities 
Change in currenl provisions 
Change in other non-current financial assets 
Change in other non-current assets 
Change in inventories 
Change in trade receivables 
Change in other current financial assels 
Change in other current assets 

Casb generated from operations 
Direct taxes paid 

Net casb flow from operating activities (A) 

Casb flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property plant and equipments. including capita I work in progress and capital advances 
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment and capital work in progress 
Purchase of current invesunents 
Sale/maturity of current investments 
Dividend received 
Interest received 

Invesunent of margin money deposit 
Redemption of fixed deposits with original maturity of more than three months (net) 

Net casb used In Investing activities (B) 

(l1le space lias been intentiollally left blank) 

Marcb 31, 2023 

(277.31 ) 

655 .79 
0.56 

54.14 

5.16 

(40.50) 
0.75 

(19.21) 
12.50 
(0.36) 

(59.57) 
(135.03) 
575.17 
152.31 

1.67 

0.62 

75.73 
(113.92) 

(1.09) 
(6.50) 

880.91 

93.25 
33.95 

7.56 
(3.52) 

137.71 
2.98 

(1.34) 
105.71 

(0.41 ) 
286.63 

(272.78) 
1.70 

65.50 
(324.65) 

43.73 
1,056.93 

(12.98) 
1,043.95 

(2.016.37) 
0.70 

(8,139.35) 
8,021.05 

105.91 
124.25 

(0.01) 
169.36 

(1,734.46) 

Marcb 31 , 2022 

27 .77 

588.29 
0.29 

325.16 
19.90 
33.37 

0.10 
(63.58) 

1.85 
(23.03) 

1.60 

(50.00) 
557.48 
181.99 

4.29 
1.94 
0.90 

43.21 
73 .35 

(107.81) 
(0.98) 

1,616.09 

287 .27 
452.78 
130.18 

3.06 
(16.44) 
(31.83) 
85.32 

(23.30) 
3.42 

135.44 
(602.22) 

(0.96) 
(64.43) 
(37.80) 
(73.36) 

1,863.22 
(11.26) 

1,851.96 

(1,472.83) 
0.32 

(7.781.29) 
8.240.21 

50.00 
149.29 

(0.02) 
233.17 

(581.15) 
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Cash flows from financing activities 
Principal payment oflease liability 
Interest payment of lease liability 
Repayment of short term loan from banks 

Proceeds from! (repayment of) non-current borrowings 

Redemption Premium paid 
Proceeds from hedge cancellation 
Option premium paid 
Borrowing cost paid 
Interest paid 

Net cash used in from financing activities (C) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Cheques! drafts on hand 
With banks 

- on current account 
- on deposit account 

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 12) 

Explanatorv notes annexed 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(4.99) (3.61) 
( 1.34) (168) 

(22.00) (242.75) 

1.000.00 (2,142.77) 
(16.38) 
264.60 

(260.25) (298.87) 
(15.03) (28 .14) 

( 1,009.72) (852.48) 
(313.33) (3,322.08) 

(1,003.84) (2,051.27) 
1,282.93 3,334.20 

279.09 1,282.93 

0.08 0.05 
0.58 

27.87 16.43 
251.14 1.265 .87 
279.09 1,282.93 

I. The above cash flow statement has been compiled from and is based on the standalone balance sheet as at March 31,2023 and the related standalone statement of profit and loss for the year. 

2. Cash and cash equivalents include Rs. 3.37 crore (March 31, 2022: Rs. 0.30 crore), pertaining to Marketing Fund to be used for sales promotional activities. 
3. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financials statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. : 001076NfN5000J3 

~':A~ 
Partner 
Membership no: 522144 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 26, 2023 

As per our report of even date 
For K.S, Rao & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FIrm RegIstratIon No 003109S 

Sudarshana Gupta M S 
Partner 
Membership no: 223060 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 26, 2023 

For and on hehalf of the Bo.ard of Directors of 
Delhi International Airport Limited 

Ahhi~ 
Company Secretary 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 26, 2023 

fud:i:'bn ~. 
Executive Director 
DIN-03482239 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023 
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1. Corporate information 

Delhi International Airport Limited ('DIAL' or 'the Company') is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. 
It was incorporated as a Private Limited Company on March 1,2006 under'the provisions of the erstwhile 
Companies Act, 1956, (replaced with Companies Act 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014), India and was 
converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from April 10, 2017. The registered office of the Company 
is New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-III, IGI Airport, New Delhi-l 10037. DIAL is into the business of 
managing the operations and modernization of the Indira Gandhi International Airport ('Delhi Airport'). GMR 
Airports Limited ('GAL') a subsidiary of GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited ('GIL') holds majority 
shareholding in the Company. DIAL had entered into Operation, Management and Development Agreement 
('OMDA') with Airports Authority ofIndia (' AAI'), which gives DIAL an exclusive right to operate, maintain, 
develop, modernize and manage the Delhi Airport on a revenue sharing model for an initial term of 30 years, 
which can be extended by another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant to the 
provisions of the OMDA. These standalone financials statements have been taken on record by the audit 
committee and board of directors in their meetings held on May 25, 2023 and May 26,2023 respectively. 

2. (A) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with ,accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from 
time to time and presentation requirement of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, as 
applicable to the financial statements. 

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in 
use. 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on an accrual basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities, which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount: 

• Derivative financial instruments 
• Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which 

have been measured at fair value. 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 

a. Use of estimates 

The preparation of the fmancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective 
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financials statements have been disclosed in note 33. Accounting 
estimates could change from year to year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes 
in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. 
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in which changes are made and, if 
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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b. Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.· 
An asset. is treated as current when it is: . 

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
b) Held primarily for -the purpose of trading 
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

c. Investments in Associates, Joint Ventures and Subsidiary 

The Company has accounted for its investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiary at cost (Refer Note 
36 (d). 

d. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Assets under installation or under construction as at the balance sheet date are shown as "Capital work-in­
progress (CWIP)". Expenditure including finance charges directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. 

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss if any. Capital work in progress 
includes leasehold improvements under development as at the balance sheet date. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item c~m be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognised when replaced. Further, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in 
the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which 
they are incurred. 
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Development fee from any regulatory authority are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that it will be 
received / utilized and the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them. 

Development fee related to an asset, (net of direct amount incurred to earn aforesaid development fee) is 
deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

e. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the useful lives 
prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets class i.e. Internal Approach 
Roads, Electric Panels and Transformers/Sub-station, the Company, based on a technical evaluation, believes 
that the useful life of such property, plant and equipment is different from the useful life specified in Schedule 
II to Companies Act 2013. The following is a comparison of the useful lives of these property, plant and 
equipment as adopted by the Company and those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013: 

Type of Assets 
Useful life as estimated by the Useful life as prestribed in 
Company based on tethnical Schedule II to the Companies 

evaluation Ad,2013 

Roads - Other than RCC 
10 years 5 years 

TransfonnersIPower Sub-Stations 
15 years 10 years 

(included in Plant and Machin~) 

Electric Panels (included in Electrical 15 years 10 years 
Installations and Equipment) 

The useful life of property, plant and equipment which are not as per schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, 
have been estimated by the management based on internal technical evaluation. 

On June 12, 2014, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority ("the Authority") has issued a consultation paper 
viz.OS/2014-1S in the matter of Normative Approach to Building Blocks in Economic Regulation of major 
Airports wherein it, interalia, mentioned that the Authority proposes to lay down, to the extent required, the 
depreciation rates for airport assets, taking into account the provisions of the useful life of assets given in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, that have not been clearly mentioned in the Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or may have a useful life justifiably different than that indicated in the Companies Act, 
2013 in the specific context to the airport sector. Pursuant to above, the Authority had issued order no. 35/2017-
18 on January 12,2018 which was further amended on April 09, 2018, in the matter of Determination of Useful 
life of Airport Assets, which is effective from April 01,2018. 

Accordingly, the management was of the view that useful lives considered by the Company for most of the assets 
except passenger related Furniture and Fixtures were in line with the useful life proposed by AERA in its order 
dated January 12,2018, which is further amended on April 09, 2018. 

In order to align the useful life of passenger related Furniture and Fixtures as per AERA order, the Company has 
revised the useful life during the financial year ended March 31, 2019. _ ' ___ 

.... J' --=-- ,;...-' 
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Leasehold Improvements are improvements, betterments, or modifications of leased property which will benefit 
the Company for the period of more than one year. The amount of leasehold improvements are capitalised and 
amortised over the period of lease. 

f. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Intangible assets include software, upfront fee paid as airport concessionaire rights and other costs (excluding 
operation support costs) paid to the Airports Authority of India (AAI) pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
theOMDA. 

g. Amortisation of intangible assets 

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for . 
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the 
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consuIIlption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in these 
financial statements. 

The Company amortises, upfront fee paid as airport concession rights and other costs paid to AAI referred to 
above are recognized and amortized over the initial period of 30 years and extended period of30 years of OMDA 
i.e. 60 years. Other intangible assets are amortised over the useful life of asset or six years, whichever is lower. 

h. Government Grant and subsidies 

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that 
(i) the Company will comply / have complied with the conditions attached to them, and 
(ii) the grant / subsidy will be received. 

When the grant! subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized under other income in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the period of receipts of such grant! subsidy, at the amount expected to be realized. 

i. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs net of income on surplus investments directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they occur. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest, call spread premium and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. 

j. Leases 

The Company assesses a contract at inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
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Company as a lessee: 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of­
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

(i) Right-of-use assets: The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement oflease liabilities. The 
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the 
same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

(ii) Lease liabilities: At the commencement date ofthe lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured 
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. 
The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments (including in 
substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 
to be paid under residual value guarantees: The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase 
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, 
if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. 

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve 
. a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance 

costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-v~lue assets 
In case of a short-term lease contract and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is oflow value, lease 
payments are charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. 

Company as a lessor: 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 
are classified as operating leases. Income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of 
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are 
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. Leases are classified as finance leases when 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfers from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due 
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. 
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the 
net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 

k. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average 
basis and includes other directly associated costs in bringing the invent ries to their present location and 
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condition. Net realizable value. is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

I. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating units' 
(CGUs) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent ofthose from other 
assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and 
forecast .calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond 
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the 
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over 
its remaining useful life. 

For assets an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decr.eased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates 
the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has 
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

m. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Commitments 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised 
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The exp~nse relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
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• A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation 

• A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
• A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets. 
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date. 
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be delivered by the Company 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The 
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the 
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established the Company recognizes any 
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

n. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an 
inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income is 
virtually certain, then . the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. 

Contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of 
economic benefits is probable. 

o. Retirement and other Employee Benefits 

Defined benefit plan 

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Employee State Insurance are 
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year 
when the contributions to the respective funds/trust are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the respective funds/trusts. 

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If 
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution 
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already 
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet 
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future 
payment or a cash refund. 

Gratuity Liability is a defmed benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance 
Corporation of India and liability . (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Every employee who 
has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days' salary (based on last drawn 
basic salary) for each completed year of service. 
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the year-end. Actuarial gains flosses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not 
deferred. 

The entire amount of the provision for leave encashment is presented as current in financial statements, since 
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the obligation. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with 
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re­
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past selVice costs are recognised in 
profit or loss on the earlier of: 

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 

ii) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs. 

The cost of providing benefits under the defmed benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit 
method. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defmed benefit liability or asset. The Company 
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit 
and loss: 

• Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non­
routine settlements; and 

• Net interest expense or income 

p. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fmancialliability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 

I) Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow 
characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables 
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical 
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant 
fip.ancing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the 
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (u) Revenue from 
contracts with customers. 

In order for a fmancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs 
to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), on the principal amount 
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 
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The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in 
order to generate 'cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting 
contractual cash flows, selling the fmancial assets, or both. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

, For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three broad categories: 

a) Financial assets at amortised cost 
b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets at amortised cost: A 'Financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following 
conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income 
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more infonnation on receivables, 
refer to Note 11. 

Financial assets at FVTOCI: A financial asset is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are 
met: 

• The asset is held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling the financial assets, and 

• The contractual terms of the fmancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Financial assets at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any Financial asset, which does 
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI), is 
classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). Financial assets included 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) 

within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

Derecognition of financial assets 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised when: . 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to 
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' 'arrangement; 
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither transferred nor. retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass­
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 

. it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control 
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing 
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of 
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be 
required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and · 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance. 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables 
or contract revenue receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 

For recognition of impairinent loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has. been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. ·If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECL, is used. If, iIi a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognising impairm~nt loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses reSUlting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
finanCial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that 
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

• All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected 
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the 
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terms 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on 
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the 
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the 
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the 
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

II) Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including and 
derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such · 
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains! 
loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through · 
profit and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

q. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as call spread options and interest rate swaps, to hedge 
its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. 

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative 
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets 
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives ~e taken directly to profit or loss, except 
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss 
when the hedge item affects profit or loss. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 

a) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability or an unrecognised finn commitment; 

b) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a 
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or 
the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment; . 

c) Hedges of.a net investment in a foreign operation. 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship 
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for 
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for 
undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk 
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's 
fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes .in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the 
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value oreash 
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flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout 
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated. 

Cash flow hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as described below: 

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge 
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, 
such as when the hedged fmancial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. 

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of 
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria 
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity 
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met. 

Presentation of derivative contracts in the financial statement 

Derivative assets and liabilities recognized on the balance sheet are presented as current and non-current based 
on the classification of the underlying hedged item. 

r. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, 
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's 
cash management. 

s. Foreign currencies 

Functional Currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. 

Transactions and Translations 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency 
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company 
uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate atthe date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit 
and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cUrrency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. 

t. Fair value measurement 
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the-measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. · 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

~vel2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 

The.Company detennmes the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative 
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External valuers are involved for valuation of 
significant assets or liabilities such as derivative instruments. 

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing 'the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 
given in the relevant notes as mentioned below: 
a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 38) 

b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 39) 

c) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) 
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u. Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at . 
the amount of the transaction price, excluding the estimates of variable consideration that is allocated to that 
performance obligation, considering contractually defined terms of payment, and excluding taxes or duties 
collected on behalf of the government. 

Revenue from contract with customer 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer 
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it 
typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer. 

Revenue from Operations 

Significant financing component 

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind 
AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant 
. financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised 
service to the customer and when the customer pays for that service will be one year or less. 

The Company also receives long-term advances from customers for rendering services. The transaction price for 
such contracts are discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between 
the Company and its · customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the significant financing 
component. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist 
of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.; only the 
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial 
assets in financial instruments - subsequent measurement. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 
the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or 
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company 
performs under the contract. 
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Income from services 

Revenue from airport operations i.e. Aeronautical and Non Aeronautical operations are recognised on accrual 
basis, net of Goods and Service Tax (GST), and applicable discounts when services are rendered. Aeronautical 
operations include user development fees (UDF), Passenger Service Fee (Facilitation Component) [PSF (FC)], 
Baggage X-ray Charges, Landing and Parking of aircraft and into plane charges. The main streams of non -
aeronautical revenue includes duty free, retail, advertisement, food & beverages, cargo, ground handling, car 
parking and land & space- rentals. 

Land & Space- rentals 'pertains to granting right to use land and space primarily for catering to the need of 
passengers, air traffic services and air transport services. 

Revenue from commercial property development rights granted to concessionaires is recognized on accrual 
basis, as per the terms of the agreement entered into with the customers. 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable except the interest income received from customers for delayed payments which is accounted on the 
basis of reasonable certainty / realisation. 

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR). ElR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected 
life of the fmancial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the 
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(for example, prepayment; extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally 
when the shareholders approve the dividend. 

Claims 

Claims on contractors / concessionaires are accounted on the basis of reasonable certainty / realization. 

v. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. 

Current income tax 

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with 
Income Tax Act, 1961. 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
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returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date . 

. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability 
. in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

ii) In respect oftaxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and 
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be 
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: 

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and 
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

Minimum Alternate Tax ('MAT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The 
C~mpany recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that 
the Company will pay nOimal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is 
allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance 
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with the Guidance Note on 'Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax' under IT 
Act, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as 'MAT credit 
entitlement'. The Company reviews the 'MAT credit entitlement' asset at each reporting date and writes down 
the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the 
specified period. 

Taxes, cess, duties such as sales taxi value added taxi service taxlgoods and service tax etc. paid on 
acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of taxes paid, except: 

• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets, goods or services is not r~coverable from the taxation authority, 
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part ofthe expense 
item, as applicable 

• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables 
or payables in the balance sheet. 

w. Operating segments 

The Company has only one reportable operating segment, which is operation of airport and providing allied 
services. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company's single 
operating segment. 

x. Proposed dividend 

As per Ind AS -10, 'Events after the Reporting period', the Company disclose the dividend proposed by board 
of directors after the balance sheet date in the notes to these financial statements. The liability to pay dividend is 
recognised when the declaration of dividend is approved by the shareholders. 

y. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. 

z. Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

3.1 Recent accounting pronouncement issued but not made effective 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA 
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below: 
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Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant 
accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other ,information, is material when it can 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general-purpose financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind ASS, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The 
definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of ac,counting estimates. Under 
the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to 
measurement uncertainty". Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial 
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertaInty. 

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes 

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and 
decommissioning obligations. The amen<ifl1ents narrowed the scope ofthe recognition exemption in paragraphs 
15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial 
recognition, give rise 'to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. 

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact on financial statements. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 



Delhllntemational Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Notes to tbe standalone linanclal statements for tbe year ended Marcb 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otberwise stated) 

4 Property, plant and equipment 

Buildings 
Leasebold 

Bridges. 
Culverts, 

improvements 
Bunders etc. 

Gross block (at cost) 
As at April I. 2021 4.570.29 20.79 399.72 

Additions 167.75 - 9.69 
Adjusbnents [refer note (a) below 1 (3 .84) (0.02) . 

As at April 1,2022 4,734.20 20.77 409.41 

Additions (refer note (b) below) 169.51 4.90 1.36 
Disposals [refer note (c) below) (0.02) (0.02) . 

As at Marcb 31, 2023 4,903.69 25.65 410.77 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at April I. 2021 1.584.15 16.50 153.96 

Charge for the year 199.15 3.97 14.15 
Adjusbnent (0.94) (0.01 

As at Marcb 31, 2022 1,782.36 20.46 168.11 

Charge for the year 198.11 0.45 13.57 
Disposals! discard . -

As at Marcb 31, 2023 1,980.47 20.91 181.68 

Net block 
As at March 31, 2022 2,951.84 0.31 241.30 
As at Marcb 31, 2023 2,923.22 4.74 229.09 

Electrical 
Roads-Otber 

Runways, 
Plant and Office 

installations and 
tban RCC 

Taxiways and 
Macbinery equipments 

eQuinments Apron etc. 

1.108.68 245.62 2.309.74 2.507.12 13.43 

282.54 5.60 341.51 145.11 6.35 
(0.77) (0. 16) (0.04) (0.35) . 

1,390.45 251.06 2,651.21 2,651.88 19.78 

17.14 9.39 413 .58 286.98 1.78 
(27 .15) . . (80.71) (5.23) 

1,380.44 260.45 3,064.79 2,858.15 16.33 

910.82 218.39 1.041.09 1.691.13 11.48 

32.94 2.90 106.76 178.03 1.14 
(0.17) (0.05 (0.0(\ (0.05) . 

943.59 221.24 1,147.84 1,869.11 12.62 

58.83 3.00 129.33 195.88 2.07 
(4.43) . . (57.82) (5.19) 

997.99 224.24 1,277.1 7 2,007.17 9.50 

446.86 29.82 1,503.37 782.77 7.16 
382.45 36.21 1,787.62 850.98 6.83 

a. Includes reduction of cost due to reduction of liability of vendors on fmal settlement amounting to Rs. Nil crore (March 31. 2022: 8.78) pertaining to construction of various capital assets. 

b. During the year Input tax credit pertaining to Goods and Service Tax on civil works has been capitalised amounting Rs. 176.87 crores (Refer note 42 (j» 
c. Terminal arrival building were decapitalized during the year for Rs 33.60 crores. 

During the year certain high value assets wriuen off due to physical verification amounting to Rs. 124.85 crores 
Assests sold as scrap during the year of Rs. 6.61 crores 

d. Buildings include space given on operating lease: 
Gross block Rs. 227.25 crore (March 31. 2022: Rs. 222.27 crore). 
Depreciation charge for the year Rs. 9.42 crore <March 31. 2022: Rs. 7.38 crore ), 
Accumulated depreciation Rs. 88.77 crore (March 31. 2022: Rs. 75.04 crore) and 
Net book value Rs. 129.06 crore (March 31. 2022 : Rs. 147.23 crore) 

e. Refer note 35(ll)(i) for disclosure of contractual commibnents for the 'acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

Computer and 
Furniture 

data processing 
and Fittings 

Vebicles Total 
units 

114.87 333 .73 19.45 11.643.44 
19.79 28.62 0.46 1.007.42 
(0.89) (2 .71) . (8.78) 

133.77 359.64 19.91 12,642.08 

46.02 36.64 11.24 998.54 
(21.14) (26.86) (3.93) (165.06) 
158.65 369.43 27.22 13,475.56 

76.94 214.24 9.78 5.928.48 

15.25 16.94 1.91 573.14 
(0.25) (0.56) . (2.04) 
91.94 230.62 11.69 6,499.58 

16.06 21.45 2.49 641.24 
(20.76) (26.77) (3.61 ) (118.58) 
87.24 225.29 10.57 7,022.24 

41.83 129.03 8.22 6,142.50 I 

71.42 144.13 16.65 6,453.31 I 

f. As per the development right given under OMDA (Operation. management and development agreement) entered with Airports Authority of India. the Company has constructed all immovable properties included under the head Property, plant and 
equipment and accordingly, considering the said development right. title deed of all immovable properties included under the head Property, plant and equipment are held in the name of Company. 

g. The Company has not carried out any revaluation of Property, plant and equipment during current and previous year. 



DelblInternational Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLCI46936 
Notes to tbe standalone financial statements for tbe year ended Marcb 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otberwlse stated) 

5 Intangible assets 

Airport concessionaire rigbts" 

Gross block (at cost) 
As at April 1, 2021 
Additions 
As atMarcb 31, 2022 

Additions 
Disposals 
As at Marcb 31, 2023 

Accumulated amortisation 
As at April I, 2021 
Charge for the year 
As at Marcb 31, 2022 

Charge for the year 
Disposals 
As at Marcb 31, 2023 

Net Block 
As at Marcb 31, 2022 

As at Marcb 31, 2023 

490.52 

490.52 

490.52 

121.57 
. 8.21 

. 129.78 

8.21 

137.98 

360.74 

352.54 

Computer 
Total 

software 

46.90 537.42 
0.52 0.52 

47.42 537.94 

0.36 0.36 
(0.17) (0.17) 
47.61 538.13 

42.81 164.38 
1.16 9.37 

43.97 173.75 

1.10 9.3i 
(0.17) (0.17) 
44.90 182.89 

3.45 364.19 
2.71 355.25 

• Airport concessionaire rights are recognized and amortized over the initial period of 30 years and extended period of 30 years of OMDA i.e. 60 years. 

(l7lis space has been intentionally left blank) 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DLlOO6PLC146936 
Notes to tbe st8lldalone financial statements for tbe year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts In Rupees Crore, except otberwlse stated) 

6 Investments 

6.1 Investment In associates and .iolnt venlures 

Inveslments carried II COSI 

Unquoted equity shares fully paid up 

Investment in assoclales 
Celebi Dellii Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
29.120.000 shares of Rs. 10 each (March 3 I. 2022 : 29.120,000 shares of Rs. 10 each) 
Dellii Airport Parking Services Private limited 
40.638.560 shares ofRs 10 each (March 31 , 2022: 40,638,560 shares ofRs 10 each) 

Travel Food services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
5,600,000 shares ofRs. 10 each (March 31, 2022 : 5,600.000 shares of Rs. 10 each) 

TIM Delhi Ainx>rt Advertising Private Limited 
9,222.505 shares ofRs. 10 each (March 31 , 2022: 9,222.505 shares ofRs. 10 each) 

DlGI Yatra Foundation 
148 shares ofRs. 10 each (March 31, 2022 : 222 shares ofRs. 10 each) 

Investment In jolnl ventures 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
12.500.000 shares ofRs. 10 each (March 31, 2022: 12,500,000 shares ofRs. 10 each) 

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
42,640,000 shares ofRs. 10 each (March 31. 2022 : 42,640,000 shares ofRs. 10 each) 

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 
108,333.334 shares ofRs. 10 each (March 31 , 2022 : 108.333,334 share ofRs. 10 each) 

Dellii Duty Free Services Private Limited 
39,920.000 shares ofRs. 10 each (Mal'ch 31, 2022 : 39.920,000 shares ofRs. 10 each) 

Less:- Provision for Impairment in the value of investment:-

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower private limited [Refer note 35 (1II)(ii)(h)] 

A22Te2ate hook value of unquoled lIOn-current Investmenl 

6.2 Other Non-c\llTtnt Inveslments 

Carried at fair value throu2b profit and loss 
East Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limited 
7.839 shares of Rs. 10 each ( March 31, 2022 : 7,839 shares of Rs 10 each) 

Tolallnveslmeots 16.1 + 6.21 

(This space has been intentionolly left blank) 

Noo-currenl 
Marcb 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

29.12 29.12 

40.64 40.64 

5.60 5.60 

9.22 9.22 

.0.00 0.00 

12.50 12.50 

42.64 42.64 

108.33 108.33 

39.92 39.92 

(38.53) (33.37) 

249.44 254.60 

249.44 254.60 

0.01 0.01 

249.45 254.61 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DLZ006PLC146936 
Noles to Ihe ,Iandalone financial statements for the year ended Marth 31, 2023 
(All amounts In Rupees Crore, except othen>ise stated) 

6.3 Current Inveslments 

Investments carried at fair value Ihroul1.h profit or loss 
Investment in mutual fund 
Unquoled Investments 

Invesco Mutual Fund 
(Nil units (March 31, 2022 : 209,347.97) ofRs. 1,000 each] 
Sundaram Money Fund Regular - Growth 
(203,167.728 units (March 31,2022 : Nil) of Rs. 1.000 each] 

HSBC Overnight Fund Direct - Growth 
[309.602.196 units (March 31,2022: Nil) ofRs. 1,000 each] 
L&T Overnight Fund-Growth 
[Nil units (March 31, 2022~ 228,703.58) of Rs. 1,000 each) 
ICICtPrudential Overnight Fund-Growth 
(414,042.233 units (March 31,2022 : 5.161,423.23) of Rs. 100 each) 
SBI Overnight Fund-Growth . 
(22.808.123 units (March 31, 2022: 121,256.677) ofRs. 1.000 each] 
Aditya B irla Overnight Fund-Growth 
[270,781.618 units (March 31. 2022 : 117,615.36) ofRs. 1,000 each] 
UTI Overnight Fund-Growth 
[186.662.092 units (March 31, 2022: 88,246.21) ofRs. 1,000 each) 
Axis Overnight Fund- Growth 
[687,038.697 units (March 31. 2022 : 388,586.24) of Rs. 1,000 each] 
TaUl Overnight Fund- Growth 
[195,958.525 units (March 31. 2022: 353,726.57) ofRs. 1,000 each J 
KOUlk Overnight fund 
[792,542.202 units (March 31, 2022: 353.728.63) ofRs. 1,000 each] 
Nippon Overnight Fund-Direct-Growth 
[NIL units (March 31. 2022: 2,953.899.98) ofRs. 100 each) 

Investments tarried at amortised cost 
Investment in Commertial Papen 

ECL Finance limited 
[5,140 (March 31. 2022: 2,300) of 500,000 each] 
Edel Final1C6 Company Limited 
[4,940 (March 3r, 2022: NIL) of500.000 each] 
Time T echnoplast Limiled 
(NIL ( March 31,2022: 1.400) of 500,000 each] 
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 
(2.500 (March 31,2022: NIL) of 500,000 each) 
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Limited 
[NIL (March 31.2022: 5,300) of 5.00.000 each] 

AI1.I1.reJ1.ate book value of unquoted Investmenl 

([his space has been intentionally left blank) 

Currenl 
March 31, 2023 . Marth 31, 2022 

22.49 

24.20 

36.32 

37.93 

50.04 59.15 

8.32 4\.97 

32.83 13.52 

57.28 25.68 

81.45 43.67 

23.17 39.67 

94 .77 40.11 

33.71 

146.82 106.62 

236.79 

65.46 

122.26 

245.67 

914.25 775,65 

914_25 775.65 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DUOO6PLCI46936 
Notes to the standalone financial statements ror the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

7. Other financial assets 

Derivative Instrument carried at. rair value through OCI/i 
Cash flow hedge- Cail spread option 

Unsecured, considered good 

Carried at amortised cost 
Security deposits 
Unsecured, considered good 

IntereSt accrued on fIXed deposits and others 

Non·trade receivable [refer note 42(b») 
[net of provision of doubtful debts Rs. 0.8 I crores (March 3 I. 2022 Rs. 0.76 crores)] 

Unbilled receivables 

Debentures for provident fund' 
Other recoverable from related parties [refer note 36(b)] 
Unsecured, considered good 
Doubtful 

Less: provision for doublful advances 

Margin money deposit' (refer note 12) 

Total other financial assets 

Non-current 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,065.92 723.01 

\07. Ii 411.12 
107.Ii 411.12 

84 .07 

0.31 0.30 
1,257.41 1,134.43 

Current 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

305.47 ' 3.23 
305.47 3.23 

20.22 21.07 
63.45 38.20 

200.05 174.55 
0.17 

0.80 1.37 
489.42 489.42 
490.21 490.79 

(489.42) (489.42) 
0.80 1.37 

590.16 238.42 

#Financial assets at fair value reflect the change in fair value of call spread options and coupon only hedge, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the future cash outflow in USD on settlement of 
foreign exchange borrowings of USD 1.022.60 million (Rs. 8.402.70 Crore) [March 31, 2022: USD 1,022.60 million (Rs. 7,750.54 Crore)] on senior secured foreign currency notes and coupon 
payment in USD on borrowing of USD 150 Million (March 31 , 2022: 150 million). 

, Rs 0.31 Crore (March 31 , 2022: Rs 0.30 Crore) against License fee to South Delhi Municipal Corporation. 
ADebentues were taken over by the Company at the time of surrender of provident fund trust. . 

8. Other assets 

Capital advances 

Advances other than capital advance 
Advance to supptiers 

Others 
Prepaid expenses 

(Al 

(B) 

Deposil with government authorities including amount paid under protest [refer note 35 (I) (a)] 
Other borrowing cost 10 the extent nOI amortised 
Lease equilisation assets [refer note 30)) 
Good and service lax refund receivable 
Balance with statutory I government authorities [refer note 420)) 

(C) 

Tollll other assets (A+B+C) 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 



Delhi lotematlooal Airport Limited 
ClN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 

Notes 10 Ibe slnd.looe finaoclal sIIlemenlS for Ibe year eoded Marcb 31, 2023 
(Amouolln Rupees Crore, unless otberwise stated) 

9. Income tas.! deferred III 

Curreol income In 
Deferred In: 

Deferred tax reclassified from Cash flow hedge reserve on account of hedge seulement 
Income lax elpense reported In Ibe "",ndalone sIItemenl of profil and loss 

Otber comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year: 

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defmed benefit plans 
Cash flow Hedge Reserve 
Income tal cbll"l:ed 10 OCI 

Reconciliation of tal upen.e and the accounting profil nrultipUed by India's domestic ta1 rate for Marcb 31, 2023 and March 31,2022: 

Accounting (Joss)/ prom before tn 

Til II tbe IppUcoble tal nte of 34.94% (Mlrcb 31, 2022: 34.94~.) 

Temporary differences on which deferred tax is not recognised 
Permanent differences 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 
Impact on expenses disallowed as per Income tax Act, 1961 
Other adjustments . 

TolIl tax elpense 
Total taX expense reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss related to 

Deferred tn: 

Deferred III UabiUty 
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 
On account of upfront fees being amortized using effective intere"t rate (EIR) method 
Fair value of investment in mutual fund 
Right-of-use assets 
Rent Equalization reserve 
Cash flow hedge reserve 

Deferred III uset 
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 
Others disallowaocesladjustments 
Unrealised forex loss on borrowings 
Intangibles (Airport Concession rights) 
Lease liability 
Interest income credited in capital work in progress 
Non trnde receivable deferment 
Unpaid liability of AAI revenue share 
Other borrowing cost to the extent not amortised 
Provision for diminution in value of non-cWTeDt investment 

Net deferred til asselS-

Blllnce sbeet 
Marcb 31 , 2023 Much 31, 2022 

(746.50) (783 .39) 
(36.00) (39.69) 

(0.38) (0.34) 
(3 .77) (4.28) 

(580.54) (514.44) 
(23 .85) (17.26) 

(1,391.04) (1,359.40) 

1,232.67 1,050.57 
14.64 15.83 

47.09 51.01 
4.40 3.67 

) 17.09 93.10 

231.88 201.48 
32.90 36.71 
13.46 11.66 

1,694.13 1,464.03 

Mlrcb 31, 2023 Mucb 31, 2022 
7.55 10.46 

(0.37) 

7.55 10.09 

MIITb 31, 2023 Mlrcb 31, 2022 

MIITb 31,2023 Mlrcb 31, 2022 

(277.31) 27.77 

(96.90) 9.70 

64 .34 
30.88 (12 .02) 

7.55 
1.68 1.56 

10.83 

7.55 10,09 
7.55 10.09 

SlItement of profit or Joss 
Marcb 31; 2023 Mlrch 31, 2022 

36.89 68.20 
3.69 10.55 

(0.04) 0.97 

0.51 2.02 
(66. 10) (113.26) 

(6.59) 75.10 
(31.64) 43.58 

182.10 268.31 
(1.19) (154.06) 

(78.40) 
(3.92) (3.93) 
0.73 (2.62) 

23.99 23.37 
(10.13) 

30.40 16.98 
(3 .81) (10.13) 
1.80 1i.66 

230.10 61.05 

o The Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and business losses as per income tax laws. Considering the Company has been incurring losses, deferred tax asset bas been recognised only to the 
extent of the available taxable temporary diffen:nces. 

Reconciliations of net deferred tax UabUitles 
Opening balance as at begioning of the year 
Deferred tax reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on account of hedge settlement 
Deferred tax reclassified from Cash flow hedge reserve on account of hedge seulement 
Tax income during the period recognised in statement of profit or loss 

Tax expenses during the period recognised in OCI 
Movemenl during til. yeor 

Closing hal.nce 

(A) 
(B) 

(C) 

(D) 
(A+B+C+D) 

(0.37) 
0.37 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it bas a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate 
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 



Delhi Inlernational Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLCI46936 
Notes 10 the standalone f1D1ndal slatements for the year ended March 31. 2023 
(All amounts In Rupees Crore. eleepl otherwise slatcd) 

10. loveotories 
(valued 01 lower of cosl or net realizable value) 
Stores and spares 

II . Trade receivables 

Trade recelvahle. 
Related parties (refer note 36(b)) 
Others 

Break up for security details: 
Trade receivables 111\ 

Secured, considered good" 
Unsecured, considered good (refer note 42(b» 
Trade Receivables· credit impaired 

1mpairmeot A1lowaoce (allowaoct for credilloss) 
Less: Unsecured, considered good 

•• Trade receivable to the extent covered by secwity deposits or banlc. guarantees are considered as Secured trade receivables. 
It Payment is generally received from cutomers in due course as per agreed terms of contract with customers which usually ranges from 7-30 days. 
A No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or joinlly with any other persoo. 

Tnde receivables includes:-

Dues from enllties In which Ihe Company'. non-.. ecutlve director Is a dlre<:tor . 
GMR Power and urban infra limited 
GMR Warora Energy Limiled 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limi.ed 
GMR Aviation Private Limiled 
GMR Bajoli Holl Hydropower Private Limited 
GMR Airports Limited 
GMR Kamalanga Eoergy Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limi.ed 

Refer note 32(a)(ii) for ageing of Trade receivables. 

12. Cash and Cash EQuivalents 
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 

Balances with Banks 
-On current accoUDts# 

-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 
Cheques I drafts on hand 
Cash on hand 

Other bank balaoces 
- Margin money deposit 
Amount disclosed under other non-current financial assets (refer Dote 7) 

Total (A+8) 

(A) 

(8) 

0.31 
(0.31) 

# Cash and cash equivalents includes balance on current account with banks for Rs. 3.37 crore (March 31,2022: Rs 0.30 crore) in respect of Marketing Fund. 

At March 31, 2023, the Company has available Rs. 454.40 crore (March 31 , 2022 : Rs. 432.50 crorc) of undrawn borrowing facilities for future operating activi.ies. 

0.30 
(0.30) 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 
5.53 7.23 

. 5.53 7.23 

Curreol 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

21.70 24.35 
55.09 134.63 
76.80 158.98 

35.00 93.08 
41.80 65 .90 

2.51 2.04 
79.31 161.02 

(2.51) (2.04) 
76.80 158.98 

Current 
March 31, 2023 March 31 t 2022 

2.77 2.44 
4.38 4.32 

1.20 0.03 
0.19 0.09 
0.14 
0.10 1.13 
4.14 1.77 
0.65 1.42 
0.14 0.06 
0.02 

0.25 

Current 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

27.87 16.43 
251.14 1.265.87 

0.58 
0.08 0.05 

279.09 1,282.93 

279.09 1,282.93 



Delhi International Airport Llmlled 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
NOles 'lo Ihe slandalone financialstal.llltnl. for Ihe year end.d M.rch 31, 2023 
(All .mounts In Rupees Crore, except otherwise stat.d) 

13. B.nk balances otber tban casb and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- DePOSils with original maturity of more than thr.e months bUI less than 12 months# 

# Deposits with bank includes Rs. 47.27 crore (March 31, 2022: Rs. 45 .63 crore) in respecl of Markeling Fund. 

Break up of financials ass.ls carried at .mortl,ed cost and at fair value IhrouRh profit and loss and at fair value IhrouRh OCI 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
InveSlmenl in commercial papers (refer note 6.3) 
Trade receivables (refer note II) 
Cash and cash equivalents (refer nole 12) 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalenlS (refer Dole 13) 
Other financialassels (refer nOle 7) 

(A) 

Flnanci.l.ssets carried at Fair value through OCI 
Cash flow hedge· Call spread option (refer Dole 7) 

(B) 

Flnanci.1 assets carri.d .t F.ir value through profit or loas 
IoveSlmeot in mutual funds (rcfer nole 6.3) 
InveStmenls in Equity Shares (refer nole 6.2) 

(C) 

Total financi.I .... 1S (A+B+C) 

('/1Iis space has been intentionally left blank) 

Non-current 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

191.49 411.42 
191A9 411.42 

1,065.92 723.01 

1,065.92 723.01 

om om 
0.01 0.01 

1.257.42 U34.44 

Current 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

47 .27 216.63 
47.27 216.63 

Current 
M.rch 31, 2023 M.rch 31,2022 

505.87 417.75 
76.81 158.98 

279.09 1,282.93 
47.27 216.63 

590.16 238.42 
1,499.19 2,314.71 

408.38 357.90 

408.38 357.90 
2,672.61 



Dclhllntematloruot Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DLl006PLCI46936 

Notes to the standalone flnancial statemenls for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(AU amounts In Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

14. Equity Share CapUal 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Autborlsed shaies (No. in Crores) 
300 crore (March 31,2022: 300 crore) equity shares ofRs. 10 each 

Issued. subscribed and fully paid-up sbares (No. In Crores) 
245 crore (March 31, 2022: 245 crore) equity shares ofRs.IO each fully paid up 

a. Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the heglnning and end of the reporting year 
Equity Shares March 31, 2023 

3,000 3,000 
3,000 

2,450 2,450 

2,450 

March 31, 2022 

No. (in crore) (Rs. In Crores) No. in crore (Rs.ln Crores) 
AI the beginning of the year 
Issued during the year 
OuISUUlding al the end of the year 

b. TermslRigbts Attacbed to equity Shares 

245 

245 

2,450 245 2,450 

2,450 245 2,4~0 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value ofRs.IO/- per share. Each holder of equity share is enlitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to 
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after. distribution of aU preferential amounls. Tbe distribution wiU be in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sbarebolders. Further the shareholders have entered into share holders agreemenl whereby special rights bave been assigned to the Airports Authority of India 
(AAI) in respeci of appointmenl of the nominee direclor in the Board of Directors, approval of reserved Sharcholders and Board matters by atrumativc vote Ofthc AAI. Further in case if any shareholder intends to 
the transfer its shares subject to restriction of lock in period in Operation, Managemenl and Development Agreement between sharebolders. other shareholders will have flfSt right of refusal in accordance with the 
terms of the sbarebolders agreement. . 

c. Shares held by boldiogi intermediate holding company and its .ubsldiary 
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares beld by its holding company, intermediate holding company and its subsidiary are as below: 
Name of Sharebolder Marcb 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited, the intermediate Holding Company 
100 (March 31, 2022: 100) equity sbare of Rs.l 0 eacb fuUy paid up 0.00 0.00 

GMR Energy Limited, Subsidiary of Ibe GMR Enterprises Private Limited (ultimate Holding Company) 
100 (March 31,2022: 100) equity sbare ofRs.IO eacb fully paid up 0.00 0.00 

GMR Airports Limited along witb Mr. Srlniva. Bommldala 
I (March 31,2022: I) equity share of Rs.1 0 eacb fuUy paid up 

0.00 0.00 

GMR Airports Limited along wltb Mr: Grandhl Klran Kumar 
I (Marcb 31, 2022: I) equity share ofRs.IO each fuUy paid up 

0.00 0.00 

GMR Airports Limited, tbe boldinl company 
156.80 crore (Much 31,2022: 156.80 crore) equity share of Rs.lO each fully paid up 1,568 1,568 

d. Details of Sbarebolders holding more than 5% of equity .bares In tbe Company 
Marcb 31, 2023 Marcb 31, 2022 

Numbers % holding in CI ... Numbers % Holding in Clas. 

Equity shares ofRs. 10 eacb fully paid 
Airpons Authority of lodia 
GMR Airports Limited 
Frapon AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide 

637,000,000 
1,567,999,798 

245,000,000 

26% 
64% 
10"" 

100% 

637.000,000 
1,567,999,798 

245,000.000 
2,449,999,798 

As per records of the Company including its register of share bolders/members and other declarations received from share bolders regarding beneficial interest. the above share holding represents legal and 
beneficial ownenhip of shares as at the balance sheet date. 

The Compamy bas Dot issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in current reporting year and in last 5 years immediately preceediug the CWTent reporting year. 
Refer nole 32 (c) for Promoter's sbarebolding. 

15. Other Equity 

26% 
64% 
10% 

100% 

Marcb 31 , 2023 Marcb 31 ,2022 
Retained earnings' 
Opening balance 
(Loss)1 profit for the year 
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans 
Closing halance 

Otber Items of Comprebenslve Income 
Cash now bedge resene .,.. 
Opening balance 
Reclassified to Slatement of Profit and Loss on account of hedge settlement 
Less:- Deferred lax reclassified to Slatement of Profit and Loss on account ofbcdge settlement 
Net Movement during the year 

, Retained earnings are profits! (losses) that the Company bas earned!incurred till dale less utilzation for dividend or other dislnbution or transaction with shareholders . 

(4.91) 
(284.86) 

(1.82) 
(291.59) 

(72.98) 

(309.91) 
(382 .89) 

(674.48) 

(22.47) 
17.67 
(0.12) 
(4.91) 

127.29 
(1.05) 
(0.37) 

(198.85) 
(72.98) 

(77.89) 

• Tbe Company bad entered inlo 'call spread option" with various banks for hedging the repayment of 6.125% Senior secw-ed notes (2026) of USD 522.60 million and 6.45% Senior secured notes (2029) ofUSD 
500 million wbicb are repayable in October 2026 and June 2029 respectively. The Company bas adopted Cash flow hedge accounting for CaU spread options as per lod AS 109. Accordingly, the effective portion of 
gain or loss on the bedging instruments is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in the Casb flow hedge reserve, while any ineffectiv is recognised immediately in the Slatement of profit and loss. 

#Dw:ing the previous lit , .~ ~ y bad cancellcd! malured call spread ophOns on pnncl~8lofUSD 288.75 rwllion and call ~~BlIl1t~~ t Iiabtlity for fullre o--~ s ofUSD 288.75 
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DdhllnltnaUonai Airporl Unllttd 
CIN. U63033DJ.1106PLCI«936 
Not" '0 tb~srIAdalo,lC nMDclflllrattmtnls ror Iht )'tllr nadtd Minh 31 . 102) 
(All amounts ill. Ruptu Cf'O", nupl Olbt-noi'hl st.l«f) 

Secured-
(qBo"'" 

6. 1 2$-;' (2016) MlLior 5CCII:f'Cd forci~.n ..;ummcyno('tl (Nole-I) 
6.45% (1029) UllJor RCWed. fotc",t currency nOles (Nolc-l) 

(II) l>ebmcurcs 
10.%4% (2025) ~on Coo\'crtible DcbtnlUrCl (NCD) 
(2027) Non COfl'ltrtible DcbtnllRS 

·lhuec.-cd" Ik:r Complnics Ael, 2013 

Non ~ Cunni 
MlrdlJI,102J ManhJI,1012 

4.219.69 3,944.39 
4.135.74 3.819.87 

3,110.113 3,196.50 
981.92 

11,63-&.18 10,960.76 

I . 6.125% ~knlor S«urd ~iKn C'\"'u'll'-,), Notes (Note-I) ofUSO 520.J3miUi.on (March 11. 2022; USO 520.42 million), prisK-~1 ouutlAdiftg clUSD 522.60 millioD lMarch 31. 2021: usn S22.60 million} froln Inlem'I~~ elpita' nurkd 
ta.n}'W11' Oiled Intern' nle of 6.115~ p .•. plus applicable wirhhoktina IIX. Note·1 Irc We b rtplymcut in Oc1obft 2026. These IlO4a Ire 'ttur~ by firsi rank pIlT"P:lUI ehArat on allihe fu.tun! revcnufS. reed\'ables. TnJ.S.t Ind Rtlenllon 
ac.:ounl. "'YOlhcr I'CUrvo. othrr Nfllt IIIC'C'OUnls .m inmR.no;c prote«l.s oflhe CompMy .nda'llbe rizhU. Ikles. inltrtSis. pmnitl in rtspcd of the projcci d~ments.s cktaik'1i In I~ ltDdm lI,rttfRtftlS, to Ihe c.xlcft( penuluiblc undtr OMDA. 

b. 6.45% Sen~ St-cutcd Fol'(ip CU(l'("neyNotCs (NOlta2) orUSD S03.39.nillioD(March 11, 2022: usn 'sol.91I1lill+OO), princ~ outslalldmg ofUSO 5(10 milUon (Mlrdw 11, 2022: USD 500 mlllioD) fromlnlrmational (.pltalnUlr"tl Ul1)'\ns. 
n Rud mltresl nile or 6.4S% p.o. plua .ppll~ab1c \vitNtoidIMIIaX. 'Illc Notr·l.!"C _0 for ~)UW,. hi Juno 2019. Pron:c:d. m,m 1Mtc' notes dld bg .tilizcd IVr finalK'la& ofPl1an:1A cKpanrion project. These notes are: secured by finl rant pori· 
pa$IU e:barga on 01111\0 future 1'C\'Cnucl. rc«ivabks, TN" MMS Rtlenllon atCOU.Ql, •• ny olher rettM:, 0Ihcr bank attOUnal Ind inhlra&1C'C proettds oflhe Company and aU Ibo ri~ lilies. interest .. permits in J'CipCCI of Ibe projeci documenllil 
dc .. lkd in lho kndcrs Dgrecmenll, to chc: txtentpenniuibk: lInd.:rOMDA. 

c.n> TI~ Company bad ilSuc.J NOn-CoUVCr1iblc Dcbc:nbllu (NC()f;) of R ... 3.257.10 C'OI"O on Mardw 30. 2021. NCDt. \'Iere bsucdou all upfivnl dDoounl orl.33%. Proceeds from NCUswtrc urilind to rep3ytM cntin: 1022 RUler sceu","­
fbreisn wm:ncy noI~ .md for ramPCing ofPhue 3A I!ltparuion ~rojc:el 
i.i) 10.964% Non CunVtrtill.! Ullbonturcs oUs. 3,210.&1 c:rOfe (March J I, 2D22:1,196.S0). prilltitN1 nulJlIIndinl ofRs.l.251.10 Claro: ( ..... eh 31, 2022: 3211.10) iuuI.-d 10 Clifllon Lbulttd to. Foroip PotIrollo 'nYI:StOr n:gblcl'(d with SBOO 
c.rry!na Q IIxtd Inl.c'lt.ll rale of 10.'il64% p.l. Ply.lblc $C1I1~e.ftnuony{plu. IPPli:IJble WJ1bho'ld'I1IS lilt). The N('D ore d~., repeymml in Oe:h)ber102S. NCDl8fe secured by tirst r.mlc pi.ri:peAU chD .... on.1I Iho fufQIc rennucl, te:e~I\"iblu, 
Trull Mnd RCknLIon ICrowll. a"yolbtr rc",rv~, other lttnk a.:countl.nd in.llll~ proceeds of thc COI"""".ed .alM ri ..... tola, .,kresu, pcmUb In rtlpoct otlhc proj\'d documeN,,, dctlilnl in tho kndcn .p.:mcnca. W) 1M a1tnt 

d. DurinG. !.he )'tar er.dtd MlIJ'th 31.2021. lhe Compln),_ is.wl:d Li.atd Non-ConYCrtibte ~ (NCDs) (anlC.C'umJ u p" Companks A~) ofRs.. 1,000 C"COJa ~G fur.cd iottrc .. fllc of9.S2%p .•. papb1e nlonlhly I'br fln136 moniJD; 
and 9.9~% p.l. plI)'Ibto monthlythelHftcr till nl.turiry. NCO. tl\.'fC ~Iocttd 011 J_ 22. lOll by !he Col'IIJI8J1)"tu ~tiplc QulliftC'd htlti""iOhlI Ru)'C", (Qlfl's) w;lh p...mq,11 mat\lril)' due in Juno 22. 2027. Prot«ts. ftom NCOs shall bcutiUzed 
lOr ~Jt flAaDCing ofPfmn:tA upiftSMHt p'eJed. N'CO. an. s:cturro by rU"lI r.lnk pari·peAU c~ 011 eM lhe fuIwc R:Y'CDUCS. f'tCCiHblcs... Trus.land RCCCIIlion ~ounc.. tiny othtrW$Cn'C. olher bonk .ccounts and insurantc PtQt«d.s of Inc 
Con'lpa.ny and all tlla rightS.lilk .. inlCftSlr. pennll. in ~et ofthc projel.'1 dOC'w»el\lla. detailed in lhe Icndcn ap:cmtntl .. IG d.c: e.(hft pmniuihle ueder Opcruk,.. MlnatcnKM [)Cydoprrwu\ Agr«me.\1 (OMDA). 

c. Wilh rl!'pe';l 10 NOIe-l, NOIc-2 and N('O OIIKro·c. the: ('()I)Ip&lI)' hu 10 fbUow fixed Cbarac: COvtRgC RalLo u provided IIJ\1:b tic ~ b' ITJ)'lMhliliuMllndeblctlncA.'Itd otm lhu~iom. Tbc ('ompany hili ... "CInlplied with 1M rrnelk:.i.1 
C'OYCn.nu prelC'ribc:d in the flnlnelnl docl1lDCnt1 &Ad 1he ,Ddtntuft'. 

f. 'Subsfll'llrnt 10 Iho )'tllr en6c4 Marth 11, 2023. lhe Com~"'s bHtd Llsttd 'Non-('on\'ft1lble De~lW'es (NCO$) (umtcuml os pcrCOM,.mts Ael oM SEal (LODJt\ JteguiariON. 2(H5) oCR ... 1,200 crorcl eel'r)-ins fixed mlucs.t rate-of 
9.15% p.l. pa)'Ibk quart('rly ror n,..t 60 nlOnlhs ucl coupon fCS(1 ralc for balMec 24 .omhs fIlbjcct '0 flaor of 1.50% aM ctp "fji,SO% O'fCf!be- Rqto I'MO .. the mel det'r. al p!.'T I~ provisions of Dtbcmuro: Tnat Deed. NCDs \\'(J'C aIIo!.trd on 
April Il,2023 byche ('ompenylO .~gibl'Q .. 1iII<d losIiMlan.t1 Buyen (QIR·,) ";"IJ,rineljlll .. rarity due .. AJllij 13.1030. 
'Proceeds nom both NCO. ( listed In as!!) shall bc utilized farpln rlnlntinl orPbudA upanstoll proj«1. NCDs -.e strul'Od (unst'curcd ts prr Compaftit, Acl and SED( (LODk) lteluNlioM, 2G (5) by rIAl rink pari·passu C'hlrp 011.1 the 
fUwrc rcVCl\U~. recl;liwblcs. 1'n1sllnd Retention ilCcounl. tiny ochor reserve, D4t1tr tuak a«ounts MId ilAWI\'O .proced5 oft'" CCMptfI)' aDd .11_ rights, tides. buCft'slS, ~Iu '" ft'SPetl of 1M JWOje<1 tkxl1metKS IS dctelkd In Ute IcDdo ... 
IgrumcnlJ., to Ih" exlent ptrmiBibte ul)dcr OpccaUoa M.\n:llemntl Do\'CIop.rnoN APCC'DWnt (OMDA),. 

&.Durin$lhe pNYiolJ.l )'C''I,.ln April 102.1 md J .. uuy 2022 DIAL bad paW usn IOji.42111i11Joa (Rs. "'0.74 crtQ) as ptr tcnikr IItttplancc "wi. usn 1&3.31 nu1Uon ( Rs.. lJ69.87 crorc) rape"dvtly 10 exu, .. USD 288.'S mUlion bondhoidtts 
001 OrJlf'O«CM ofNC'D. 

h. Tho .bow m~lIlloncd bonowiogs m\"'C b~, ulilLsc:d IS per !he pu'JlOS'C !bey M\"'C Men rakeR. 
Cb3nRCs in fjab-JlitiC$ aridu (tom finant'lnll: lt1ividtt:-
Parilcullilu 

As .t I'tbrrh 3t, 1021 
Cash flOW'l 
Non·ash ch:llllgts 

Firunoe co,, 
FOld", ~JI..;hOlngc fluctuation 
Addilionll'moliiflCa1ion in Itlsu 
CI\lnllC it\ Falr vahlL'S 

As atMauh 31 Z023 

17. Olbtr FlnllDtlal UablJltltl 

O.htr Obtttdtlll .. bUlllrs at unartllcd. (0.11 
5(oeurilY dc-pusilS frotll trade cooctSiionlins· olhrn: 
S«wil)' depolit. fronl COIllmt'rciDI property dcveloprn 
Hamul monq- tI~ul' 
('Qpitll creditors 
Rel~nliun nloDI:)' 
Auuual rtu po.)"blll TO AAllnur MlcJ6lb)1 
Inle~" I"rued but nol duc on borrawinl£ 
IinlplCl)'ce bencrit c-ltpt'l1.l.C' plI,YIblo 
Tot.l olhtr ftuod41 U.bUIIIl!llIl amorUvd onl 

Itl. Drlerrcd Reytnu~ 

Deferred income on nn.nc"'-Ili.lhililits rwrMN al Inlonrtttl co~ (nftr nolo a below) 

Un,,~J"I'I«I ~o (rcftr note b Ixlow) 

Berrowtup 

UabHl1tu arltlnl from n.aodnc Atllvlttcs ADets hC~dO~~:~::llonc (lrm 

Jaltf'ttl Clittillcd on L UtHIit.bUh'n Dtrlntn·.lndrumu!ll- C •• h flo1'l' _.p 
brdee 

10.911.16 337.63 14.40 113.DI 
978-.00 (1,009.72) (6.33) (260.25) 

0.14 1.015.99 1.34 260.66 

653.29 
3.11 

- )42A9 
12.61.UI 343 ... 12.58 1~5.91 

Non-c:urrtllt CUrrnl 

448.50 40S.12 256.65 :lA9.14 
I!<S.I? 182.44 

1.29 I~ 

816.28 11$.'1 
1.15 4.51 140.3$ 116.62 

66).51 516.5_ 
343.90 337.63 

2.60 4.51 
l,lO~.Ot L168.65 b~61.tO t.e •. 'U 

Curnat 
March 31.1813 Marth 31.1011 r-brth ll.lG13 March ll. lOU 

2.12&.31 2.2()('31 99.14 100.'13 
4.13 4.10 90.96 91.11 

1.1:10"''' MIG.it 190.10 1t2.04 



DelhllnttrnlUonl1 Airport Llrolttd 
elN. U63033DL2006PLCI46936 
Notes to the standalone fin.ndalstatements lor tbe year endf'd. March 31, 2023 
(AU amounts ~ Rupta Crore. except otherwtse Iialtd) 

(a) Dtlerred income on finlDclalllabWtles tllrrltd. al amonlud cost 

As at April 01. 2022 

Deferred during the year 
Released to the statement of profit and loss 
As It April 01, 2023 

(b) Unftlrned rewrtue 

As at April 01. 2022 
Dcferred during the year 
Released to the statement of profit and loss 
As "' Aprtl 01,2023 

Note: 

2.301.24 
32.72 

(113.92) 
2",226.04 

March 31, 2023 
95.21 

580.21 
(580.39) 

95.09 

March 31,2022 
1,841.63 

513.42 
(lOi.81) 

2,301.24 

Mlrch 31, 2022 
9.14 

909.56 
(823.49) 

95.21 

a lntc:rcst free security deposit received from concessionaire and commercial properly developers (thai arc refundable in cash on completion of its term) are carried at amonised cosL Difference between the amortised value and transaction 
value of the security deposits received has been recognised as deferred revenue. 
b. Unearned revenue as at March 31. 2023 represents 'contract liabilitics' due to adoption of modified retrospective approacb of transition in acco.rdance with lnd AS tiS .. 

(Tht.s Jpaa. has beef! Jnlentwna/~v It/I blank) 



DelhllnlernlUonal AIrport LlmU«I 
CIN. U63033DLlOO6PLCI46936 

. Notes to th~ .t.nd.lon~ finanelal statements for the year tndflJ March 3J, 2023 
(AlI.mounU In Ruptn Crore. ntepl otherwise nattd) 

19. Otber llibWl1es 

Advances from oornmercial property developers 
Advance from customer 
MarkCling fund liability 
Tax deducted at soureelTax Collected al source payable 
Goods and Service tax payable 
Other statutory dues 
Otber liabilities 

Noles: 

Non-(urrent 
Much 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

185.29 
0.16 

185045 

177.73 

0.16 

177.89 

Curnnt 
Much 31, 2G23 March 31,2022 

78.76 33.73 
49.64 31.99 
45.74 40.63 

84.26 50.74 

1.88 2.18 
3.49 2.22 

32.88 30.79 
296.65 192.28 

1. Advances from commercial property developers and Advances from customers as at March) 1. 2023 represents 'contract liabilities' due to adoption of modified retrospective approach oftransitiOD in accordance with lnd AS I J 5. 

2. Applying the practica1 expedient as given in Ind AS J 15. the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds dircc.tly with \he: value to the 
customer afme entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis. 

3. Contract liabilities include transaction price. other than those meeting the ex.;lusioD criteria mentioned above. related to performance obligation to be satisfied within one year for Rs. 128.40 <:rOres (March 31. 2022: Rs 65.72 <:rOres) and 
after one year for Rs. 185.45 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs 177.89 crores). 

20. Curreot Borrowings 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 202l 

Short T enn Loans: 
from banks (sccurtd)' 22.00 

22.00 

, The Company has availed. Working capital facility from ICICI bank. wbich is payable between 12010 180 d3)< from Ihe dale of dishu,..,.en!. in single installment aDd canied an interest rat, of7.W. per annum (Marcb 31. 2022: Rs 22 
aores). The current working capital facility is val)d till May 20. 2023. The working capital facility is secured with: 
(I) A first ranking pari pe5$u chargtJ assignment of all insuran<:e policies, contractors' glWantees and liquidated damages to the ma.umwn extent permissible \Dlder the OMDA and the Escrow ACCOtml AgreeOlent; 
(ii) A first ranking pari passu chargeJassignOlent of alilhe rights: titles. permits. approvals and interests of the BQrrower in, to and in respect of the Project Documents. in accordance with and to the maximum extent pcrmincd under the 
OMDA and the Escrow Account Agreemenl~ 

(iii) A mst ranking pari passu charge on all the revCQues I receivables oftbe BQrrower (excluding dues to the Authority) subject to the provisions of the Escrow ACCOUDt Agreement ~d the OMDA. 

21. Trod, payabl .. 

Total outstanding dues of micro entef1)riscs and small enterprises 

Total ou~tanding dues of creditors other'than micro enterprises and small 
entaprises 

- Relaled parties [refer nole 36(b)] 
-others* 

-Includes bills payable orRs, 0.11 crore (March 31. 2022: Rs 8.56 crore) towards goods and services, whicb are initially paid by banks where there is no recourse on the Company. 

Disclosu~ .1 per Section 22 o( "The Micro, SmaU and Medium EoterpriJeS Del'elopmenl Act., 2006". 

The principal amount and the interest due lhereon remaining unpaid 10 

any supplier. 

• Principal amounl 
- Interest thereon 

The amount of interest pajd by the buyer in terms of section 16. along with the amoun~ of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. 
The amount ofinler ... due and payable for Ihe period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but b<)<>nd Ihe appoinled day during the year) but 
without adding the interest specified under this Act 
The amount of interest. accrued and remaining unpaid 
The amount of furthcT interest remaining due and payable even in the su~ing years. until such date when 1he interest dues above are actually paid to the 
mlalJ investor 
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 

Trade payables are noR-interest bearing aod are normally settled on 30-60 day terms, 
Related parties payable are payable on demand once Ihey get due. 
For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 40 

Refer nole 32(a)(iii) for ageing ofTrode payables. 

. lZ Provlslon, 

Provision (or tmploy~ beoentl 
Provision for leave benefilS [refer nOle 34(a» 
Provision for Gnlluily [refer nole 34(c)] 
Provision for superannuation 

OlheN 

8rHk up of finllldalllabWtles 

Flnlndal Uablllty carrltd It ImorUsed cost 
Borrowings (refer notc 16) 
Current Borrowings (refer note 20) 
Trode Payables (refer oole 21) 
Leas< liabilities (refer note 42(1» 
Other financial liabilities (refer Dote 17) 

NOD-<urreni 
Marcb 31, 2023 March 31, lOlZ 

3.06 

3.06 6.59 

Non-curnnt 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

12.614. 18 10,960.76 

8.59 10.51 
1.305.09 1,168.65 

I3t927.86 12,139.92 

Mar,h 31, 2023 Mirth 31. 2022 

36.02 

181.28 
228.74 
446.04 

37.43 

34.74 
234.47 
306.64 

Ma",h 31, 2023 Marcb 31, 2022 

36.02 37.43 

Currcot 
MIr,h 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

32.52 32.92 

0 .33. 0.34 

119.73 119.73 
152.58 152.99 

Current 
March 31,l023 Ma"b 31, 202l 

22.00 
446.04 306.64 

3.99 3.89 
1.561.10 1.434.76 

2,011.13 11767.29 



Delhi Inlernational Airport Llmiled 
CIN. U63033DLl006PLC146936 
Noles 10 Ibe standalone financill statements for Ibe year ended Mlrch 31, 2023 
(AU Imounts iii Rupees Crore, elCepl olherwise staled) 

23. Revenue From Opera lions 

Reveaue from conlracl wllh customen (refer nole 42 (m)) 
Aerollaullcal (A) 
Non- Aeronlulicll 

Duty free 

Retail 
Advertisement 
Food and Bevernges 
Cargo 
Ground Handling 

Parking 
Land and Space - Rentals 

Others 
Total Non ·Aeronautical (B) 

Olher operaling revenue 
Revenue from commercial property development (C) 

TOTAL (A+B+C) 

24. Olher income 

Inleresl income on finincillissel clrned allmortlsed cosl 
Bank deposits and olbers 
Security deposits given 

Dividend Income on non-currenllnvesrmenls earned al cost 

Olher non-opera ling Income 
Gain On sale of fmancial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss 

Current investments-Mutual fund 
Fair value gain on fmaneial instruments at fair value through profit and loss' 
Interest income on fmancial asset carried at amortised cost 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Profit on relinqushment of assels rights 
Miscellaneous income 

• Fair value gain on fiuBIlcial instrument at fair value through profil and loss relates to current investment in mutual funds . 

25. Employee Benefits Elpense 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
C onnibution to provident and other funds 
Gratuity expenses [refer note 34(c)] 
Staff welfare expenses 

26. Depreciallonlnd Imortization tlpense 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 
Depreciation on Right to use Ihe Asset (refer note 42(1)] 

27. Flnlnce Costs 

Interest on borrowings 
C.lI spread option premium 
Interest expenses on fmancialliability carried .t amortised cost 
Other interest 
Other borrowing costs 

-Bank charges 
-Other cost 

Redemption premium on borrowings 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

Mlrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

937.63 627.40 

507.22 211.75 
179.17 92.67 
166.53 95.28 
213 .08 110.13 
336.10 331.43 

161.12 94.62 
73.08 34.77 

537.20 497.03 
303.75 190.30 

2,477.25 1,657.98 

575.09 628.69 

3,989.97 2,914.07 

Mlrch 31, 2023 Mlrcb 31, 2022 

39.78 63.58 
0.72 1.01 

135.03 50.00 

19.21 23.03 
1.09 0 .98 
6.50 
0.36 

59.57 
2.Q4 4.67 

264.30 143.27 

Mlrch 31, 2023 Mlrch 31, 2012 

222.20 203.43 
16.00 13.58 
2.73 2.90 

11.05 8.54 

251.98 228.45 

Mlrch 3 I, 2023 March 31, 2022 

641.24 573.14 

9.31 9.37 
5.24 5.78 

655.79 588.29 

March 31, 2023 Mlrch 31, 2022 

575 .17 557.48 
152.31 181.99 . 

75.73 73 .35 
5.06 41.72 

0.38 1.71 
1.67 4.29 

1.94 
810.32 862.48 



Deihl International Airport Llmlled 
CIN. U63033DLl006PLCI46936 
Notes to the standalone nnanelAlstalemellt. ror the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounls In Rupee. Crore, e.copt oU,erwloe .fated) 
lB. Other elpenlts 

Ulility expeno"" 
Repairs and maintenance 

Planl and machinery 
Buildings 
IT Syslems 
Olhcr.s 

Manpowor bire cbarges 
AirpOrl Operalor fe .. 
Securily related expen.es 
wurance 
Consumable. 
Professional and cOI1!nlltancy cx('lcnscs 
Provision against advaneelo AAI paid undor proteI! [rof.'·lIote 35(1)(11) ond (i)) 

Travelling and cOPveyancc 
Rates and taxes 
Reut (including le .. e ronlal.) 
Advenising anll .ales promotion 
Communlcallon costs 
Printing and staUonery 
Directors' silliug fe .. 
Payment to auditors (refer 1I0le A below) 
Provisiou for doubtful Ileb,. J bad debts wriuen off 
Non·eurrent inveslmcnlS wrillclI OfT 
Exchange differenco (nel) 
Corporate cost Dllocation 
Collection charges (nel) 
Donalions 
CSR cxpendin"e (refer nolc B below) 
Property. planl and equipment wrilten ofT 
Loss on discard of Capital worl< in progress and property, plant and equipment 
Expense. of commerciDI properly devclopmenl 
Miscellaneous expenses 

A. Payment to Auditors nnciuded In other eneD'.! above) 
(Excluding Goods and service tax) 

As Audltor 
Audit fee 
TBJ( audit fee 
Olher services 
- Olher .ervices (illcludinlt ccnmeation fees) 
.. Reimbursement of expenses 

B. Det.Os of CSR expenditure: 

a) Gross amount required to be spellt by the Company during tbe Yfllr 

(b) Amount spent during Ih. ye.r ended: 

i) ConstrucliolJacquasilion of BUY asset 
ii) On purposes other than (I) above-

c) Amount opent durlnjl Ihe year ended: 

i) CODstmction/Dequisition of any asset 
ii) On purposes other than (i) above" 

Yet to be paid In cash 

Yol to b. pRid in <Ish 

March 31, 2023 MRrch 31, 2022 

76.50 44.42 

117.61 107.23 
41.10 30.57 
34.26 39.95 
22.71 21.02 

145.51 139.55 
64.67 50.14 
20.88 23.42 
21.42 19.83 
24.90 27.99 

104.45 67.96 
43.21 

45.53 35.93 
19.57 14.41 
5.60 2.59 

15.64 10.80 
1.08 3.75 
1.21 1.60 
0.24 0.20 
1.08 0.73 
0.56 0.29 

0.10 
0.75 1.85 

68.33 66.32 
7.18 5.63 
0.38 0.81 
4.42 3.67 

12.50 
1.60 

32.84 9.11 
5.60 4.54 

896.51 779.12 

March 31, 1013 March 31, 2021 

0.99 0.60 
0.06 0.06 

O,OJ 0.07 

JsQ§ g~ 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2812 

March 31, 2023 
In CRlh Total 

4.42 4.41 

March 31, 2011 

In cash Tot.1 

3.67 3.67 

• hlcludu Rs 3.00 crores (March 31, 2022 : Rs 1.77 crores) conlribution 10 GMR Varalaksmi FoundatiOli for varlous CSR activities as approved by CSR committee [refer nole 36(a) and 36 
(c)) 

29. ExcepUonallteml 

March 31, 2023 

54.14 

S.l6 
59.30 

March 31, 2012 

325.16 
.19.90 
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30. Components of other comprehensive in<ome 

The disaggregalion of cha"8 .. lo OCI by each type of reso.ve in equity i. ,how" below: 

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (net) 
Less: reclassified 10 'ilIlemelll ofpront and loss 

31. E.rnin~. Por Share (EPS) 
The following reflects Ihe (Ioss)l profil and .hare dala uscd in thc basic alld dilulcd EPS oo"",u.alions: 

(Loss)! profll attributable to equity holders of tile compony 
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing eaming pcr share (basic and diluted) 

Earning pcr .ha.., (basic) (Rs) 
Earning per Share (dilutcd) (R') 
Face value pcr share (Ra) 

(Tiois space IlUs bull ill/elll/Qnully left blank) 

lItarch 31,2013 

(308.84) 
(1.07) 

(309.91) 

Mar<h 31, 1013 

(284.86) 
245.00 

(\.16) 
(1.16) 
10.00 

Marcb 31, 20n 

105.99 
(304.84) 
(198.85) 

March 31, 2022 

17.68 
245.00 

0.07 
0.67 

10.00 
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32. Other disclosures required as per Schedule III 

(a) Ageing schedules 

(i) Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP)# 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

As at March 31, 2023 
Less than 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 Total 

year years 
Projects in progress 2,541.73 2,542.07 1,479.21 1,519.87 8,082.88 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

As at March 31, 2022 
Less than 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 Total 

year years 
Pr:ojects in progress 2,570.12 1,416.95 1,491.19 59.43 5,537.69 

# No project is temporarily suspended. 

Details of capital-work-in progress (CWIP), whose completion is overdue . 
As at March 31, 2023 

To be completed in 
Less than 1 year 1- 2years 2 - 3years More than 3 years 

Phase-3A Project 1\ 7,766.09 - - -
1\ Due to COVID-19 pandemic overall project completIOn date shifted from June'2022 to September' 2023 and project cost 
increased from Rs. 10,550 crores to Rs 11 ,550 crores on accolint of additional interest during construction / expenditure 
during construction [refer note 42(0)]. 

As at March 31, 2022 
To be completed in 

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 
NIL ' - - - -

(ii) Trade Receivables 

As at March 31, 2023 
Outstanding from the due date ofJ!ayment Total 

Not Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
due months 1 year 3years 

Undisputed trade 
receivables - - 17.80 29.93 18.74 4.75 5.58 76.80 
considered ."good 
Undisputed trade 
receivables -
which have - 0.51 0.01 - - . 1.99 2.51 
significant increase 
in credit risk 
Disputed Trade 
Receivable- - - - - - -
Considered good 
Disputed trade 
receivables -
which have - - - - - -
significant increase 
in credit risk 

:..---. -....... 
{\O." 
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Less :- Allowance 
for bad and - (0.51) (0.01) - - ( 1.99) 
doubtful debts 
Trade Receivables 
as on March 31, - 17.80 29.93 18.74 4.75 5.58 
2023* 

*Unbilled receivables are shown as part of other financials assets (refer note 7), not included above. 

As at March 31, 2022 
Outstanding from the due date of pa ment 

Not Less than 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than 3 
due 6 months -1 year years years j'J!ars 

Undisputed trade receivables - - 124.1 0 13.29 8.57 8.49 4.53 considered good 
Undisputed trade receivables-
which have significant increase - - 0.61 - 0.11 1.32 
in credit risk 
Disputed Trade Receivable- - - -Considered good 

- - -

Disputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase - - - - - -
in credit risk 
Less :- Allowance for bad and (0.61) (0.11) (1.32) 
doubtful debts - - -
Tt'ade Receivables as at March 

124.10 13.29 8.57 8.49 4.53 
31 2022* -

*Unbilled receivables are shown as part of other financials assets (refer note 7), not included above. 

(iii) Trade Pay abies 

As at March 31, 2023 

Provisions Not due 
Outstanding from the due date of payment 

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
1 year I years 

Micro and small 27.50 7.58 0.85 0.03 0.06 0.00 
entetprises 
Others 200.43 128.93 79.91 0.24 0.44 0.Q7 

Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -

As at March 31,2022 

Provisions 
Outstanding from the due date of payment 

Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
year years 

Micro and small 23.76 12.24 1.36 0.05 0.01 0.01 
entel'prises 
Others 204.64 45.21 17.55 0.48 0.89 0.44 
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -

(2.S1) 

76.80 

Total 

158.98 

2.04 

-

-

(2.04) 

158.98 

Total 

I 
36.02 

410.02 

-
-

Total 

37.43 

269.21 
. 
-
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(b) Financial Ratios 

Ratio Numerator Denominator As at As at 
March 31 2023_ March 31 2022 

Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.79 1.26 

Debt~uity ratio Total debt Shareholder's equity 7.11 4.64 
[Non-currelJt borrowings + Current 
borrowings+Lease liability] 

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings avaiable for debt services Debt Service = [Interest, option 0.90 1.03 
= [Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating premium & Lease Payments + 
expenses like depreciation and other Principal Repayments 1 
amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like 
loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.] 

Return on equity ratio Net Profii after tax (including OCI)(I) Average Shareholder's equity -28.77% -7.36% 

Inventory turnover ratio(2) Costs ofmaterials consumed Average inventories Not applicable Not applicable 

Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations(3) Average trade receivables(') 11.74 

Trade payables turnover ratio Other expenses and annual fee to AAl Average trade payables 7.58 

Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations Working capital -7 .11 

Net profit ratio Profit after tax Revenue from operations -7.14% 

Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and tax Capital employed (5) ' 3.79% 

Return on investment Income generated from investments in equity Weighted a'verage investments(7) 45.08% 
instrument of Joint Venture and Associate 
Companies(6) 

Return on investment Income generated from other investments (8) Time weighted average investments 6.04% 

Notes: 

(1) Profit after tax includes Other comprehensive income (OCI). 

(2) Company is not into manufacturing! sales of product, hence this ratio is not applicable for the company. 

(3) Revenue from Operation does Dot included notional income ofRs 406.26 crores and Rs 535.93 crores in current and previous year respectively . 

. (4) Average trade receivables includes average unbilled revenue ofRs 187.30 crores and Rs 330.73 crores in current and previous year respectively. 

(5) Capital Employed is Tangible Net Worth. Total Debt including Lease liabilities and Deffered tax liability. 

5.20 

2.51 

4.89 

0.61% 

6.85% 

5.77% 

4 .26% 

Variance % Remarks 

-37% In current year due to utilisation of fimds for Phase 3A there is 
decrease in current assets 

53% Due to increase in non- cwrent borrowings during the year and 
decrease in shareholder's equity because of the current year losses. 

-13% 

291% On account of payment of annual fee to Airports Authority of India 
during the current year 

126% Reduction in trade receivables 

202% On account annual fee to Airports Authority of India during the 
current_~ear 

-245% Due to increase in the revenue for the current year and utilisation of 
funds for Phase 3A leading to decrease in the working capital. 

-1277% Due to loss in current year as annual fee to Airports Authority of 
India accounted during the current year 

-45% During the current year due to increase in total debt and 
corresponding decrease in earnings before interest and tax due to 
accounting of annual fee to Airports AuthorityofIndia 

681% Due to increase in receipt of dividend during the current year 

42% Due to increase in investment in higher yield invesbnents in current I 

I year 
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(c) Promoter Shareholding :-
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 

Number of %of % Number of %of % 
Name of promoter shares total . Change shares total Change 

shares during shares during 
the year the year 

GMR Airports Infrastructure 100 0.00% Nil 100 0.00% Nil 
Limited 
GMR Energy Limited 100 0.00% Nil 100 0.00% Nil 
GMR Airports Limited 1,567,999,798 64% Nil 1,567,999,798 64% Nil 
GMR Airports Limited along I 0.00% Nil I 0.00% Nil 
with Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 
GMR Airports Limited along I 0.00% Nil I . 0.00% . Nil 
with Mr. Grandhi Kiran 
Kumar 

(d) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any Benami property. 

(e) The Company has no transactionslbalances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies 
A t 2013 h be t fth kn I d fC' b I c, to t e s 0 e owe 1ge 0 ompany s management except eow: 

Name of the Struck Nature of March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 Relationship with 
off Company Transaction Struck off Company 

Delhi Aerotropolis Write off of Investment - 0.10 Subsidiary 
Private Limited 

(f) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency. 

(g) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(h) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or; 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(i) The Company has used borrowings from Banks and fmancial institutions for the specific purpose for which 
it was taken at the balance sheet date. 

U) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lerider. 

(k) The Quarterly return/statements of current assets filed by the Com'pany with banks and financial institutions 
in relation to secured borrowings wherever applicable are in agreement with books of accounts. 
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(1) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

33. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 
future periods. 

33.1 Judgements 

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the fmancial statements. 

Discounting rate 

The Company has considered incremental borrowing rate of Airport sector as at transition date, for measuring 
deposits being financial assets and financial liabilities, at amortised cost. The incremental borrowing rate have 
been revised for period starting from April 1,2022 for all the deposits taken/received post March 31, 2022. The 
impact has, accordingly, been duly accounted for in these Financial Statements . 

. Consideration of significant financing component in a contract 

The Company sells pouring rights at airport for which contract period is for more than one year. The Company 
concluded that there is a significant financing componentJor those contracts where the customer elects to pay in 
advance considering the length of time between the customer's payment and rendering services; as well as the 
prevailing interest rates in the market. 

In determining the interest to be applied to the amount of consideration, the Company concluded that the interest 
rate implicit in the .contract (Le., the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the equipment to the 
amount paid in advance) is appropriate because this is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a 
separate financing transaction between the entity and its customer at contract inception. 

Non applicability of Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) 

DIAL had entered into Operation, Management and Development Agreement ('OMDA') with Airports 
Authority ofIndia (,AAl'), which gives DIAL an exclusive right to operate, maintain, develop, modernize and 
manage the Delhi Airport on a revenue sharing model for an initial term of 30 years, which can be extended by 
another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant to the provisions of the OMDA. Under 
the agreement, AAI has granted exclusive right and authority to undertake some of the functions of the AAI 
being the functions of operation, maintenance, development, design, construction, upgradation, modernization, 
finance and management of the Airport and to perform services and activities at the airport constituting 
'Aeronautical Services' and 'Non-Aeronautical Services'. For prices, aeronautical services are regulated, while 
the regulator has no control over determination of prices for non-aeronautical services. The management of the 
Company conducted detailed analysis to determine applicability of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 and concluded 
that the same does not apply to DIAL. Company concession arrangement has significant non-regulated revenues, 
which are apparently not ancillary in nature, as these are important from DIAL, AAI and users/passengers 
perspective. Further, the regulated and non-regulated services are substantially interdependent and cannot be 
offered in isolation. The airport premise is being used both for providing regulated services (Aeronautical 
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Services) and for providing non-regulated services (Non-aeronautical Services). Accordingly, the management 
has concluded that SCA does not apply in its entirety to the Company. 

Annual Fee to AAI 

As per the Concession Agreement (OMDA) entered into with AAI in April 2006, the Company is required to 
pay to AAI annual fee (AF) each year at 45.99% oil. its projected revenue and same shall be payable in twelve 
equal monthly instalments (MAF), to be paid in each calendar month. As per Article 1.1 of Chapter I of OMDA, 
"Revenue" is defined to mean all pre-tax gross revenue of DIAL with certain specified exclusions. 

Management of the Company is of the view that the certain income / credits arising on adoption of Ind-AS was 
not in contemplation of parties in April 2006 when this Concession Agreement was signed / entered. Further, 
these income/credits in Statement of Profit and Loss do not represent actual receipts from business operations, 
from any external sources and therefore, these incomes/ credits should not be treated as "Revenue" for 
calculation ofMAF to AAI. Accordingly, the Company, basis above and legal opinion, has provided the monthly 
annual fee to AAI based on Revenue as per the Ind AS financial statements after adjusting such incomes/creclits 
[refer note 35(1)(h) and (i) and 42(h)). 

33.2 ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities· 
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based on its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared, existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising 
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine 
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future 
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity 
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and 
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans 
operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the 
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables 
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases 
are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 34 (c). 
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Provision for Leave encashment 

The present value of leave encaslunent is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the 
determination of discount rate, future salary increases, and withdrawal rates. Due to complexities involved in 
the valuation and its long term nature, provision for leave encaslunent is sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, 
including legal, contractor and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or 
more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of 
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the 
outcome of future events. 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to . 
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity 
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of 
financial instruments. See Note 38, 39 and 40 for further disclosures. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar 
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing ofthe asset. The value in use calculation 
is based on a discounting cash flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five 
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet coinmitted to or significant future 
investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is 
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth 
rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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34. Retirement and other employee Benefit:-

Employee Benefit:-

a) Leave Obligation 

The leave obligation cover the Company's liability for earned leave and sick leave. The entire amount of the 
provision of Rs. 32.52 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 32.92 crores) is presented as current in financial statements, 
since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the obligation. 

b) Defined contribution plans 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has recognised Rs. 16.00 crores (March 31,2022: 13.58 
crores) as an expenses and included in Employee benefits expense as under the following defined contribution 
plans. 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Employer's contribution to 
Provident and other fund# 12.15 9.71 
Superannuation fund* 3.85 3.87 

Total 16.00 13 .58 

# Net of amount transferred to Capital work-in-progress ('CWIP') and adjustment against Advance from 
Commercial Property Developers (CPO) Rs. 0.51 Crore (March 31,2022: Rs. 0.56 Crore). 

*Net of amount transferred to CWIP and adjustment against Advance from CPO Rs. 0.09 Crore (March 31, 
2022: Rs. 0.25 Crore). . 

The Board of trustee meeting was held on March 31, 2022 wherein Trustees were informed that trust had 
surrendered with effect from April 1, 2022. The Company is contributing provident fund (PF) to Employees 
Provident fund organisation with effect from April 1, 2022. 

Till previous year, the Company made contribution towards provident fund which is administered by the trustees. 
The rules of the Company's provident fund administered by a trust, required that if the board of the trustees were 
unable to pay interest at the rate declared by the government under para 60 of the Employees provident fund 
scheme, 1972 for the reason that the return on investment is less for any other reason, then the deficiency should 
be made good by the Company making interest shortfall a defined benefit plan. Accordingly, the Company had 
settled the trust liability and contributed towards the deficiency. 

As per the requirement of lnd AS 19, Employee Benefits of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
benefits involving employer established provident funds, which require interest shortfalls to be re-compensated, 
are to be considered as defmed benefit plans. Based on the actuarial valuation and on the assumptions provided 
below there was no cumulative short-fall which had been provided in the standalone financial statements in 
previous year. 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Plan assets at the year end, at fair value - 181.43 

. Present value of benefit obligation at year end - 17l.63 

Net liability recognized in the balance sheet - -
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Assumptions used in detennining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the 
detenninistic Approach: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 . March 31, 2022 
Discount rate - 7.10% 
Fund rate - 8.00% 

PFO rate - 8.10% 

Withdrawal rate - 5.00% 

- Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality Mortality (2006-08) Ult * 

* As published by IRDA and adopted as Standard Mortality Table as recommended by Institute of Actuaries of 
India effective April I; 2013. 

(c) Gratuity expense 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation (DBO) which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance 
Corporation of India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Every employee who 
has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days' salary (based on last drawn 
basic salary) for each completed year·of service. 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the standalone statement 
of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligations: 
Net employee benefit expense: 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current Service Cost 2.55 2.66 
Past Service Cost - -
Net Interest Cost 0.18 0.24 

Total 2.73 2.90 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 
For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Actuarial loss due to DBO experience 0.70 0.56 
Actuarial gain due to DBOfinancial assumptions (0.42) (0.61) 
changes· 
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 0.28 (0.05) 
Return on -'plan assets less than discount rate 1.54 0.17 
Actuarial loss recognized in OCI 1.82 0.12 

Balance Sheet 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Defined benefit obligation (29.78) (26.95) 
Fair value of plan assets 26.72 20.36 
Benefit Liabili!y J3.0~ . (6.59) 
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 
. Particulars March 31, 2023 

Opening defined benefit obligation 26.95 
Interest cost 1.85 
Current service cost 2.55 
Acquisition cost (0.04) 
Benefits paid (including transfer) (1.80) 
Actuarial loss on obligation-experience 0.70 
Actuarial gain on obligation-financial assumption (0.42) 
Closing defined benefit obligation 29.78 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 
Opening fair value of plan assets 20.36 
Acquisition Adjustment (0.04) 
Interest income on plan assets 1.67 
Contributions by employer 8.08 
Benefitspaid (including transfer) (1.80) 
Return on plan assets' lesser than discount rate (1.54) 
Closing fair value of plan assets 26.72 

March 31, 2022 
24.44 

1.60 
2.66 
0.17 

(1.88) 
0.57 

(0.61) 
26.95 

March 31, 2022 
20.91 
(0.04) 

1.37 
0.15 

(1.88) 
(0.17) 
20.34 ' 

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 8.08 crores to gratuity fund during the year ending on March 31, 
2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs~ 0.17 crore). 

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets is as follows: 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1%) 1%) 
Investments with insurer managed funds 100 100 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Discount rate (in %) 7.30% 7.10% 
Salary escalation (in %) 6.00% 6.00% 
Exyected rate of return on assets 7.00% 7.30% 
Attrition rate (in %) 5.00% 5.00% 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31,2023 is as shown below: 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Assumptions Discount rate 
Sensitivity level 1% 1% 
Iml'act on defin'ed benefit obligation due to increase . (1.95) (1.86) 
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease 2.23 2.13 
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Assumptions Future Salary Increase 
Sensitivity level 1% 
Impact on defmed benefit obligation due to increase 1.85 
Impact on defmed benefit obligation due to decrease (1.70) 

Assumptions Attrition rate 
Sensitivity level 1% 

Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 0.24 

. Impact on defmed benefit obligation due to decrease (0.27) 

1% 
1.82 

(1.66) 

1% 
0.17 

(0.20) 

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defmed 
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end ofthe reporting 
period. 

The average duration of the defmed benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (March 
31,2022:10 years). 

The following pay-outs are expected in next five years: 

Year Ending Amount 
March 31 , 2024 4.22 
March 31, 2025 2.73 
March 31 , 2026 3.50 
March 31 , 2027 3.24 
March 31, 2028 3.58 

(This space has been intentionally Left bLank) 
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35. Commitments and Contingencies . 

I. . Contingent Liabilities: - claims against the company not acknowledged as debts: 

Particulars March 31,2023· 

(i) In respect of Income tax matters (disallowances/ 64.29 
additions made by income tax department) * 

(ii) In respect of Indirect tax matters [also refer note (e), (f) 58.53 
and (g) below] 

(iii) In respect of property tax matter [refer note (a) below] 38.41 

(iv) In respect of Annual fee payable to AAI [refer note (h) & (i) below] 

March 31, 2022 

64.29 

190.42 

38.41 

*Matters dIsputed under Income Tax Act 1961, wherein disallowances result in reduction in 'returned loss' 
as per the return of income have not been considered for above disclosure. Tax impact of reduction in loss 
amounts to Rs. 54.02 crores. 

a) During the year ended March 31,2017, the Delhi Cantonment Board (DCB) had raised provisional invoice 
demanding property tax ofRs.9.0 1 crores in respect of vacant land at IGI Airport for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2017. However, based on same computation method as used for payment of property tax to South 
Delhi Municipal Corporation (SDMC), the company has made payment towards property tax for financial 
year ended March 31 , 2017 to the financial year ended March 31 , 2022 along with request to DCB to withdraw 
its demand. DCB has raised provisional invoice on April 29, 2019 and Notice of demand dated November 1, 
2019 demanding property tax ofRs. 10.73 crores for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 along with 
arrears of Rs. 28.78 crores. Accordingly, the Company has disclosed remaining amo~nt of Rs. 38.41 crores 
in respect of financial year ended March 31, 2017 to financial year ended March 31, 2020 as contingent 
liability. 

The Company has obtained a legal opinion; wherein it has been opined that liability w.r.t. earlier years cannot 
be ruled out. As DCB has not raised any demand for earlier years, and the Company has· submitted its 
application for adopting the same computation method as considered by SDMC, while arriving at the demand 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2017, the amount of liability for earlier years is unascertainable, and 
therefore no provision has been considered. 

The Company had filed a writ petition before the Hon'ble Delhi High court against DeB to set aside the 
impugned demand notices. The Hon'b1e Delhi High court heard the matter on December 2, 2019 and directed 
to be keep in abeyance the impugned demand notices and directed DCB to grant a detailed hearing to the 
Company, upon the Company's filing a representation before the DCB, subject to deposit a sum of Rs. 8.00 
crores. In compliance of High Court order, the Company had deposited a sum ofRs. 8.00 crores under protest 
on December 20, 2019. 

However, despite many representations made by the Company and ignoring all contentions of the Company, 
DCB had passed an assessment order dated June 15,2020 levying the property tax ofRs. 867.21 crores per 
annum against its earlier assessment of tax ofRs. 9.13 crores per annum and raised the total demand ofRs. 
2,601.63 crores for three years i.e. 2016-17 to 2018-19 and the Company has been directed to pay Rs. 
2,589.11 crores after making due adjustments of amount already deposited. The order was in violation of the 
earlier order dated December 2, 2019 passed by the Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi and was in breach of the 
provisions of the Cantonments Act. Accordingly, the Company filed a Writ Petition on July 20, 2020 before 
the High Court of Delhi challenging the assessment order dated June 15,2020. The writ petition was heard 
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on various dates in which Honourable Delhi High Court directed DCB not to take any coercive action against 
the Company till next hearing. Pending writ petition, DCB had assessed additional demand of property tax 
for Rs. 1733.32 crores for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and financial year ended March 31, 2021 
after considering amount paid by the Company , the Company had filed its additional affidavit for 
consideration for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and financial year ended March 31, 2021 in present 
writ petition. The matter was heard on February 27, 2023 and Ministry of Home Affairs and Ministry of Civil 
A viation along with AAI sought 4 weeks time for filing affidavits and the court approved the request for it. 
The matter was heard was on May 25, 2023 and Hon 'ble Court has directed both party to come with amicable 
solution. The hearing is adjourned to next date of July 27,2023. 

Basis internal assessment done by the management and legal advice obtained from external legal experts, the 
management believes that the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote. 

b) The Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA) issued a Circular dated January 8, 2010 giving fresh guidelines 
regarding the expenditure which could be met out of the PSF (SC) and subsequently clarified by MoCA vide 
order dated April 16, 2010. Based on the said circular, the Company is not debiting such security expenditure 
to PSF (SC) escrow account. Further, vide circular dated May 17, 2012, it was further directed that any such 
expenditure already debited was required to be credited back to PSF(SC) account. However, security 
expenditure amounting to Rs. 24.48 crores was already incurred prior to April 16, 2010 and was debited to 
PSF (SC) account. 

The Company had challenged the said circulars issued by MoCA before the Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi 
by way ofa Writ Petition. The Hon'ble Court, vide its order dated December 21,2012, had restrained MoCA 
from taking any coercive measures in the fonn of initiation of criminal proceedings against the Company 
and the matter is now listed on September 19, 2023. 

Based on an internal assessment and aforesaid order of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, the management is 
confident that no liability in this regard would be payable and as such no provision has been made in these 
Financial Statements. 

c) MoCA had issued orders in the past requiring the Company to reverse the expenditure incurred, towards 
procurement and maintenance of security systems/equipment and on creation of fixed assets out ofPSF (SC) 
escrow account opened and maintained by the Company in a fiduciary capacity. In the opinion of the 
management of the Company, the Company had incurred Rs. 297.25 crores towards capital expenditure 
(excluding related maintenance expense and interest thereon) till the date of order out of PSF (SC) escrow 
account as per Standard Operating Procedure (SOPs), guidelines and clarification issued by MoCA from 
time to time on the subject of utilization ofPSF (SC) funds and as such had challenged the said order before 
Hon'ble High court of Delhi. . 

MoCA in its order had stated that approximate amount of reversal to be made by the Company towards 
capital expenditure and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 295.58 crores and Rs. 368.19 crores respectively, 
subject to the order of the Hon'ble High court of Delhi. The Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, vide its order 
dated March 14, 2014, stayed recovery of amount already utilized by the Company from PSF (SC) Escrow 
Account till date. The matter is now listed for hearing on August 8, 2023. 

Based on an internal assessment, the management of the Company is of the view that no adjustments are 
required to be made in the books of accounts. 

However, pursuant to AERA orderNo. 30/2018-19 dated November 19,2018 with respect to Company's 
entitlement to collect X-ray baggage charges from airlines, the Company has remitted Rs. 119.66 crores to 
PSF (SC) for transfer of screening assets from PSF (SC) to the Company with an undertaking to MoCA by 
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the Company that in case the matter pending before the Hon'ble High Court is decided in it's the Company's 
favour, the Company will not claim this amount back from MoCA. 

d) The Company was entitled to custom duty credit scrip under Served from India Scheme (SFIS) of Foreign 
Trade Policy issu.ed by Government of India. Under the terms of SFIS, service providers are entitled to 
custom duty credit scrip as a percentage offoreign exchange earned by the Company that can be utilized for 
payment of import duty. Till March 31, 2014, the Company had cumulatively utilized custom duty credit · 
scrip amounting to Rs. 89.60 crores, in lieu of payment of import duty in respect of import of fixed assets 
(including capital work in progress) and accounted the same as grant as per para 15 of erstwhile Accounting 
Standard 12 and adjusted the same against certain expenditure which in its view are related to obtaining 
such custom duty credit scrip entitlements. Basis the opinion of the Exp~rt Advisory Committee ('EAC') of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. ' 

However, Airport Authority of India (' AAI ') has expressed different view on this and argued that amount 
utilized under SFIS should be treated as revenue and accordingly annual fee on amount ofRs 89.60 crores 
is payable to AAI. 

The Company had filed a writ petition against the AAI' s letter in Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi on July 10, 
2015 disputing the demand and prayed for quashing of demand by AAI. Hon'ble High Court has granted the 
interim relief and disposed the writ petition with a direction to Company to seek remedy under the provisions 
of Arbitration law. 

The matter was contested in arbitration before Arbitral Tribunal and arbitration award was pronounced in 
favour of the Company on December 27, 2018, mentioning that the income earned by way of SFIS Scrip 
does not fall under the defmition of Revenue as per OMDA as it is not related with any Aeronautical or Non­
Aeronautical activities and it is of the nature of capital receipt. Accordingly, no annual fee is payable to 
AAI by the Company on SFIS revenue and demand of AAI for annual fee stands rejected. However, AAI 
has filed an appeal challenging the order of Arbitral Tribunal before the High Court of Delhi on April 25, 
2019 for setting aside the arbitration award dated December 27, 2018. The matter is now listed on August 
3, 2023 for arguments. 

e) The Director General of Central Excise Intelligence, New Delhi had issued a Show Cause Notice F. NO. 
574/CE/4112014IInv.IPT.IIIl1327 dated October 10,2014 on the Company, proposing a demand of service 
tax ofRs. 59.91 crores (excluding interest and penalty) considering Advance Development COl)ts ('ADC') 
collected by Company from the Commercial Property Developers under the service tax category 'Renting 
of Immovable Property'. 

The Company has replied to the show cause notice as referred to above with appropriate authority on April 
17, 2015. Subsequently, Additional Director General (DG) (Adj.), Directorate General Central Excise 
Intelligence (DGCEI) has passed Order No. 10/20 16-ST dated May 02, 2016 confinning demand of service 
tax of Rs. 54.31 crores and imposed equivalent penalty. However, based on an internal assessment by the 
Company in this regard, the Management is of the view that service tax is not leviable on ADC, as these are 
collected for development of certain infrastructure facilities for the common use and not for the exclusive 
use of any developer. Service tax liability on ADC, jf any arises, shall be adjusted from ADC amount 
collected by Company from the Commercial Property Developers. 

The Company has filed appeal before CESTAT, New Delhi on August 02, 2016 against the order dated May 
02, 2016. The matter was concluded and decided vide order dated February 8, 2019 in favour ofthe Company 
setting aside the order of the DG (Adj.) raising a demand of service tax ofRs. 54.31 crores. 
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The department has filed SLP before Supreme Court, against the Order dated February 8, 2019 passed in 
favour of the Company. The Company has filed counter affidavit on September 9,2020 and the matter is yet 
to heard. 

Accordingly, the amount ofRs.54.31 crores disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31, 2023. Further, 
the management of the Company is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made to these fmancial 
statements. 

f) The Commissioner of Service Tax, New Delhi had issued Six Show Cause Notices (SCN) and one addendum 
to SCN on the Company, proposing a demand of service tax aggregating to Rs. 275.53 crores (excluding 
interest and penalty) on the collection of Development Fee ("DF") from passengers in airport for the period 
from March, 2009 to September, 2013. Out of total demand of service tax ofRs 275.53 crores, service tax 
amounting to Rs 130.17 crores has already been paid by Company under protest. The Company replied to 
the show cause notice referred to above with appropriate authority and the issue was heard on merits on 
February 17, 2016. Subsequently, the Commissioner of Service Tax, has passed Order No. C.No.D 
IIVSTIIV /16/Hqrs/ AdjnIDIAL/153/20 15/1862-ST dated July 12,2016 confirming the demand of service tax 
ofRs. 262.06 crores (after giving cum duty effect) and out of the said demand has appropriated amount of 
Rs 130.17 crores already deposited by Company under protest towards service tax, and further imposed a 
penalty of Rs 131.89 crores in respect of this matter. 

However, based on an internal assessment by Company in this regard, the management is of the view that 
service tax is not leviable on DF, as the DF is a statutory levy and is meant to bridge financing gap funding 
for the airport project. The collection of DF from passengers is not in lieu of provision of any service to 
them. Further, there is no service provider and service recipient relationship between the Company and the 
passengers paying DF. Service tax liability, if any arises on DF, shall be decided by AERA, keeping in view 
the final pronouncement of the matter. 

The Company had filed an appeal against the order before CEST A T, New Delhi on October 10, 2016. The 
matter was concluded in final hearing held on December 04,20-18 and the decision is pronounced on January 
18, 2019 in favour of the Company setting aside the order of the Commissioner levying service tax on ADF 
and penalty amounting to Rs. 262.06 crores. The department has filed SLP before Supreme Court, against 
the Order dated January 18, 2019 passed by CEST AT in favour of the Company. The Company has filed 
counter affidavit on August 14,2020. The matter was heard on various dates and final order was pronounced 
on May 19,2023 in favour of the Company. 

Accordingly, the amount of Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs. 131.89 crores) has been disClosed as contingent 
liability. 

g) . In certain matters before Hon'ble Delhi High Court or Hon'ble Supreme Court yet to be decided, wherein 
the Company has been made respondent and the petitions filed by the VOl, others/concessionaires which 
are relating to the applicability of serVice tax (under pre-GST regime) on services provided by the Company 
and the issues under consideration are related to licensing of space in Airport, Service tax on supply of 
electricity, running of duty free shops to be regarded as Airport Services. The Company initially charged 
service tax against the services provided, however levy and the applicability was contested by such parties 
and accordingly they filed petitions before judicial authorities making the Company as a party/respondent 
in the matters. The management is of the view that these matters will not result in any additional obligation 
on the Company in case of adverse decisions and in case of any demand or liability arising on account of 
a_ ~1i~Jt;,a!ion of the issues, the same are recoverable from the service recipients. 
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h) The .company issued various communications to Airports Authority of India ("AAI") from month of March 
2020 onwards inter-alia under Article 16 (Force Majeure) and informed AAI that consequent to outbreak of 
Covid-19 pandemic, the entire aviation industry, particularly the Indira Gandhi International (IGI) Airport 
has been adversely affected. It was specifically communicated that the said crisis has materially and 
adversely affected the business of the Company which in tum has directly impacted the performance of the 
Company's obligations under the Operations Management and Development Agreement ("OMDA") 
(including obligation to pay Annual FeelMonthly Annual Fee) while the Company is continuing to perform 
its obligation t6 operate, maintain and manage the IGI Airport. The Company thereby invoked Foree Majeure 
post outbreak ofCOVID-19 "A Pandemic" as provided under Article 16 ofOMDA and claimed that it would 
not be in a position to perform its obligation to prepare Business Plan and pay Annual Feel Monthly Annual 
fee to AAI. The said event(s) of Force Majeure had also been admitted by AAI in its communication to the . 
Company. Consequently, the Company is entitled to suspend or excuse the performance of its said 
obligations to pay Annual FeelMonthly Animal Fee to as notified to AAI. However, AAI has not agreed to 
such entitlement of the Company under OMDA. This has resulted in dispute between the Company and AAI 
and for the settlement of which, the Company has invoked on September 18, 2020 dispute resolution 
mechanism in terms of Article 15 of OMDA. Further, on December 02, 2020, the Company again requested 
AAI to direct the ICICI Bank (Escrow Bank) to not to transfer the amounts from Proceeds Accounts to AAI 
Fee Account, seeking similar treatment as granted by Hon'ble High Court of Delhi to Mumbai International 
Airport Ltd. 

In the absence of response from AAI, the Company approached Hon'ble High Court of Delhi seeking certain 
interim reliefs by filing a petition u/s 9 of Arbitration & Conciliation Act on December 5, 2020 due to the 
occurrence of Force Majeure event post outbreak of COVID 19 and its consequential impact on business of 
the Company, against AAI and ICICI Bank. The Hon'ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated JanuaI)' 
5, 2021 has granted ad-interim reliefs with following directions: 

• The ICICI Bank is directed to transfer back, into the Proceeds Account, any amount which may 
have been transferred from the Proceeds Account to the AAI Fee Account, after December 9,2020, 

• Transfer of moneys from the Proceeds Account to the AAI Fee Account, pending further orders, 
shall stand stayed and the Company can use money in Proceeds Account to meet its operational 
expenses. 

Meanwhile with the nomination of arbitrators by the Company and AAI and appointment of presiding 
arbitrator, the arbitration tribunal had commenced from January 13, 2021. The final arguments before 
arbitration tribunal were closed in February and March 2023 and final order of Arbitration Tribunal is 
awaited. 

Before the Company's above referred Section 9 petition could be finally disposed off, AA.I has preferred an 
appeal against the ad-interim order dated January 5, 2021 under section 37 of the Arbitration and 
Conciliation Act, 1996 before division bench of Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, which is listed for 
consideration and arguments. 

In compliance with the ad-interim order dated January 5 2021, AAI had not issued any certificate or 
instructions to the Escrow Bank from December 09,2020 onwards regarding the amount of AAI Fee payable 
by the Company to AAI, as contemplated under the Escrow Agreement and the OMDA. Resultantly both 
pursuant to the ad-interim order of Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi and in the absence of any certificate or 
instruction from AAI, the Escrow Bank has not transferred any amount pertaining to AAI Fee from Proceeds 
Account to AAI Fee Account of the Escrow Account from December 09,2020 onwards. 
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Basis the legal opinion obtained, the Company is entitled to not to pay the Monthly Annual fee under article 
11.1.2 of OMDA to AAI being an obligation it is not in a position to perform or render on account of 
occurrence of Force Majeure Event, in terms of the provisions of Article 16.1 of OMDA till such time the 
Company achieves level of activity prevailing before occurrence of Force majeure. Further, the Company 
had also sought relief for refund of MAF of an amount of Rs. 465.77 crores appropriated by AAI for the 
period starting from March 19,2020 till December 2020. 

In view of the above, the management of the Company had not provided the Monthly Annual Fee to AAI 
for the period April 1,2020 to March 31,2022 amounting to Rs. 1,758.28 crores. 

As AAI had already appropriated the Monthly Annual Fee amounting to Rs. 446.21 crores from April 01, 
2020 till December 09, 2020, which the company had already protested. Accordingly, the same had been 
shown as Advance to AAI paid under protest. However, since the recovery of this amount is sub-judice 
before the Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi and the arbitral tribunal, as a matter of prudence, the Company had 
created a provision against above advance and shown the same in other expenses during financial year 2020-
21. 

As an interim arrangement the Parties (the Company and AAI) by mutual consent and without prejudice to 
their rights and contentions in the dispute before the arbitral tribunal, have entered into a settlement 
agreement dated April 25, 2022, for the payment of Annual Fee/ Monthly Annual Fee (AF/ MAF) with effect 
from April 2022, prospectively. Accordingly, the Company is paying the MAF to AAI w.e.f. April 1, 2022 
onwards as per approved Business Plan. 

Consequent to this interim arrangement, both the Company and AAI had filed copy of the agreement in their 
respective petition and appeal before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi and have withdrawn the pending 
proceedings. This arrangement is entirely without prejudice to the rights and contentions of the parties in 
respect of their respective claims and counter claims in the pending arbitration proceedings, including the 
disputes in respect of payment/non-payment of MAF from March 19, 2020 onwards, till such time as 
provided in Article 16.1.5 (c) ofOMDA. 

i) The Government ofIndia announced Services Export from India Scheme (SEIS) under Foreign Trade Policy 
(FTP) 2015-20 under which the service provider of notified services is entitled to Duty Credit Scrips as a 
percentage of net foreign exchange (NFE) earned. These Scrips either can be used for payment of basic 
custom duty on imports or can be transferred!traded in the market 

The Company is of the view that the Scrips received under SEIS are in nature of Government Grant and is 
similar to the Scrips received earlier under Served from India Scheme (SFIS) of Foreign Trade Policy 2010-
15. Hence, in view of the Arbitral Order dated December 27,2018 in case of SFIS Scrip, the Income from 
SEIS Scrip is out of the purview of revenue definition as per OMDA. Accordingly, management believes 
that, no Annual Fee is payable as per the provisions ofOMDA, and has not been provided in these financial 
statements. 

However, Revenue Auditor appointed by AAI have considered the same as Revenue under OMDA and 
accordingly, AAI has asked the Company to pay revenue share on this revenue and withheld the amount of 
Rs. 43.21 crores from excess MAF payment in FY 2019-20. 

The Company had shown aforementioned amount ofRs. 43.21 crores as part of advances recoverable from 
AAI during the financial year ended March 31, 2922. Though the Company had been following up 
continuously with AAI for adjustment/ refund of the said advances, however, despite several follow up AAI 
had not refunded! adjusted the same in past 2 years. 
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Consequently, pending the settlement of High Court on similar matter related to SFIS scrips (on which 
arbitration award was in the Company's favour), and considering the delay and non-action on part of AAI 
to refund the said amount, as a inatter of prudence, the Company had provided for the entire amounfofRs. 
43.21 crores in the statement of profit and loss as Provision against Advance recoverable from AAI during 
the financial year-ended March 31, 2022. 

II. Financial guarantees- The Company has not provided any financial guarantee other than performance 
guarantee on its own behalf, to any party. 

Performance guarantees given by the Company on its own behalf are not considered as contingent liability. 

III. Capital and Other Commitments: 

i. Capital Commitments: 
The Company has estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided 
for Rs. 1,575.75 crores (excluding GST) [Net ofadvances ofRs, 475.49 crores (excluding GST)] at March 
31,2023 and Rs. 3,183.21 crores (excluding GST) [net of advances ofRs. 519.10 crores (excluding GST)] 
at March 31, 2022. 

ii. Other Commitments: 
a. As per the terms of OMDA, the Company is required to pay annual fees to AAI at 45.99% of the 

revenue (as defined in OMDA) of the Company for an initial term of30 years starting from May 2006 
and which can be extended by another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant 
to the provisions ofOMDA. [Refer note 35(I)(h) & (i)]. 

b. In respect of its equity investment in East Delhi Waste Processing Company Limited, the Company 
along with SELCO International Limited has to maintain minimum 51 % shareholding for a period of 
2 years from the commissioning of the project and equity shareholding of the Company & SELCO 
shall not be less than 26% for 10 years thereafter. The project has been commissioned with effect from 
April 28, 2017. 

c. As per the terms of Airport Operator Agreement, the Company is required to pay every year 3% of 
previous year's gross revenue as operator fee to Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide. 

d. During previous years, the Company had entered into "Call spread Option" with various banks for 
hedging the repayment of6.125% Senior secured notes (2022) of USD 288.75 million, 6.125% Senior 
secured notes (2026) of USD 522.60 million and 6.45% Senior secured notes (2029) for USD 500 

'11' hi h h t d . F b 2022 0 b 2026 d J 2029 f I mI IOn w c ave r~<lYmen uem e ruary , cto er an une respec Ively. 
Option Period Call spread Total Premium Premium 
Value range Premium paid/adjusted outstanding as at 

(in USD (INRJUSD) Payable till 
Mn) From To March 31, March March 

2023 31,2023 31,2022 
522.60 December 6, 2016 October 22, 2026 66.85 - 101.86 1,241.30 769.92 471.38 596.80 

80.00* Febru~ 8, 2017 Janl@)' 25 2022 6.8.00 - 85.00 94.33 . 94.33 - -
208.75* January 25 2018 January 25 2022 63.80 - 85.00 192.28 192.28 - -
350.00 June24 2019 May 30 2029 69.25-1 02.25 742.79 273.17 469.62 544.74 
150.00 Febru~ry 27 2020 Mlly 30 2029 71.75-102.25 307.17 99.51 207.66 240.89 

Dunng the preVIOUS year, the Company had entered mto "Call spread OptIon" with bank for hedgmg 
the payment of interest liability on 6.125% Senior secured notes (2026) for USD 522.60 million 
borrowings. 
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During the previous year, the Company had entered into "Coupon only hedge" with bank for hedging 
the payment of interest liability on 6.125% Senior secured notes (2029) for USD 150 million 
borrowings. 
*During the previous year, the Company had cancelled/matured Call spread Options of USD 288.75 
million for full repayment of borrowings USD 288.75 million. 

With respect to Subsidiary, Joint ventures and associates: 

e. The Company has committed to provide financial support to Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited 
(100% Subsidiary Company) to meet the liabilities of Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited (Subsidiary 
Company), as and when required. 
The Company has approved to strike off its investment in the Subsidiary Company in its board meeting . 
dated February 11,2020. Pursuant to this, the Board of Directors ofDAPL, in its meeting held on June 
OS, 2020 have approved the filing of application with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) for strike off. 
The application had been filed with the ROC on August 11, 2020 and the approval for striking off and 
dissolution was received on December 09, 2021. DAPL is now struck-off and dissolved. Accordingly, 
the Company had written off the investments made in DAPL amounting to Rs 0.10 crore in its books 
of accounts on March 31, 2022. 

f. The following investments have been pledged by the Company towards borrowings by these 
companies: 

Company Name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
No. of Amount No. of Amount 
Shares (Rs.) Shares (Rs.) 

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private 36,648,000 366,480,000 18,853,703 188,537,030 
Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Tenninal 3) 1,680,000 16,800,000 16,80,000 16,800,000 
Private Limited 

g. In respect of the Company's investment in Joint Venture (' N') entities and Associate Companies, 
other N I associate partners have the first right of refusal in case, any of the N I associate partners 
intend to sell its stake subject to other tenns and conditions of respective NI associate agreements. 

h. In respect of its equity investment in GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited ('Bajoli Holi'), 
the Company has to maintain minimum 17.33% of equity shareholding until the expiry of or early 
tennination of power purchase agreement dated September 11, 2017 entered between the Company 
and the Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited, expiring on May 03, 2036. The Company had 
invested Rs. 108.33 crores as equity share capital. Due to inordinate delay in commencement of 
operation in GMR Bajoli Ho1i Hydropower Private Limited and basis the valuation report of the 
external valuer as at March 31, 2023, the Company has created a provision for impainnent on in its 
investment in GMR Bajoli Holi Private Limited for Rs. 5.16 crores (March 31,2022: Rs. 33.37). 

1. The Company had invested in DIGI Yatra foundation (DYF), a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) fonned 
as central platfonn to identity management of passengers, as Joint Venture (N) of private airport 
operators and Airports Authority ofIndia (AAI) under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Not for · 
Profit Organization). Further, it had been decided by AAI that initially for incorporation AAI, Delhi 
International Airport Limited (DIAL) and Bangalore International Airport Limited (BIAL) will fonn 
this company with shareholding of26:37:37 respectively. Currently, DIGI Yatra foundation is having 
paid up share capital ofRs. 10,000 and DIAL has jnvested Rs. 1,480 only (March 31,2022: Rs. 2,220). 
Currently, 26% shareholding of Digi Yatra Foundation is held by AAI and remaining 74% 
~fla~eholding is equally divided amongst the Private Airport Operators viz. BIAL, Cochin ~~ft~~al 

. ~:~ 47~~~na;%." 11ffi!.~~~' 
, ~ It.). .l -1~ ~ ... (/1;~ ' :J't['r :.r: )" 

.* t \ : j ~\:C~U'l:.I" i, 
"/ l t *-t._ . .. _flI- ~<:;'/'--- <J\) ~~ 

,r ... '''IV()e~' "lI j ' GAlU': ... Yf ~<F,\ * - c;~/' 
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36. Related Party Transactions 
a) Names of related parties and description of relationship: 

Description of relationship Name of the related parties 
Ultimate Holding Company (GrollJ» GMR Enterprises Private Limited 

Intennediate Holding Company GMR A~rts Infrastructure Limited5 

Holding Company GMR Airports Limited 

Subsidiary company Delhi Aerotr()polis Private Limited' 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 

Associates Travel Food ServicesJDelhi Tenninal n Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Ca!:SO Tenninal Man!lgement India Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 
GMR A~rt Devel~ Limited 
GMR Consulting services Private Limited 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
Raxa Security Services Limited 

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ullimate! 
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 

GMR Highways Limited6 
Intermediate holding company) 

GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Goa International Ai--'JXlrt Limited 

GMR Air C~o and Aero~ace Erlgineeri~ (Formerl)'known as GMR Aero Technic Limited)l 
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited 
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 
GMR Green Energy Limited 

Fellow associates (including.associate companies of the ultimate! 
GMR Tenaga Operations and Maintenance Private Limited Intennediate holding company) 

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 

Joint ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi DulY Free Services Private Limited 

GMR Bllioli Holi J:!rdr()pOwer Private Li!Tlited4 

Airports Authority oflndia 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is ajoint venture DlGI Yatra Foundation 

Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide 
GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation 

Joint Ventures of member ofa Group of which DIAL is a member 
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 
GMR Warora Energy Limited 
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 

Enterprises where significant influence of Key Management 
GMR Varalaksmi Foundation 

Personnel or their relatives exists 
Mr. G.M. Rao - Executive Chairman 
Mr. G.B.S Raju· Man~ Director 
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala - Non Executive Director 
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar - Non Executive Director 
Mr. K. Narayana Rao - Whole Time Director 
Mr. Indana Prabhakara Rao- Executive Director 
Mr.Phil~e Pascal - Non Executive Director lwef. May 24, 2021) 
Mr. ReEis Lacote - Non Executive Director (wef. May 24, 2021) 
Ms. Denitza Weismantel- Non Executive Director 
Mr. Gunuputi Subba Rao· Non Executive Director (till May 24 2021) 
Mr.Mauhias E~er - Alternate Director to Ms. Denitza Weismantel 

r 
Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru - Jnd~ndent DirectorJwef. ~ember 20,202!l 
Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao- Independent Director ( wef. September 20, 2021) 

Key Management. "ersonnel Ms.Bijal Tushar Ajinkya - Independent Director (we£. September 06,2022) 
Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa - Independent Director (till September 05 2022) 
Dr. Mundayat Ramachandran -·Independent Director 
Mr. R.S.S.LN. Bhaskarudu -Independent Director (till September 20 2021) 
Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran-In<kPendent Directoutill September 20, 2021) 
Mr. Anlll ~rwal.Non Executive DirectorJAAI nominee) (tiil ~ril 22,202!l 
Ms.Vidya Vaidyanathan - Additional Direct0r:iAAl NomineeJJwef. November 14,2022) 
Ms. Rubina Ali - Non Executive Director (AAI Nomin~ 
Mr. Anil Kumar Pathak - Non Executive Director (AAI Nominee) 

Mr. K. Vinayak Rao- Non Executive Director (AAI NO)!linee) (wef. June 28,202 I to October 31,2022) 

Mr.Videh Kumar Ja~uriar- Chief Executive Officer 
Mr.Hari Nagrani - Chief Financial Officer 
Mr.Sushil Dudeja - Company Secretary (wer. May 24,2021 to November 08, 202!l 
Mr.Abhishek Chawla - Company SecrellllY (wef. November 09 202 I) 
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I .The Company had approved to strike off its investment in the Subsidiary Company in its board meeting dated February II, 2020. Pursuant to this, the Board of Directors of 
DAPL, in its meeting held on June OS, 2020 had approved the filing of application with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) for strike off. The application had been filed with the 
ROC on August II, 2Q20 and the approval for striking off and dissolution was received on December 09, 2021. DAPL was now struk-off and dissolved. 

2.The Company had invested in DIG! Yatra foundation, a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) formed as central platform for identity management of passengers, as Joint Venture (JV) 
of Private Airport Operators and Airports Authority oflndia (AAI) as Section 8 Company (Not for Profit Organization) under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, 
it had been decided by AAJ that initially AAJ, Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL) and Bangalore International Airport Limited (BIAL) will form this company with the 
shareholding ratio of 26:37:37 respectively. Currently, DIGI Yatra foundation is having paid up share capital of Rs. 10,000 'and DIAL has invested Rs. 1,440 only (March 31, 
2022: Rs. 2,220). Currently, 26% shareholding ofDigi Yatra Foundation will be held by AAJ and remaining 74% shareholding will be equally divided amongst the Private Airport 
Operators viz. BIAL, Cochin International Airport Limited (CIAL), DIAL, GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHJAL), Mumbai International Airport Limited (MIAL) 
i.e. 14.8% each. 

During the Year ended March 31, 2023, DIAL has transferred 74 equity shares (i.e. 7.4% eqUity inDYF) to Mumbai International Airport Limited (MIAL) on June 14,2022. 

3.GMR Aero Technic Limited has demerged the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul (MRO) division and merged into GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited. 
Therefore, the MRO business is now operated under the new name "GMR Air cargo and AerospaceEngineering Limited". 

4. Due to inordinate delay in commencement of operation in GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited and basis the valuation report of the external valuer as at March 31, 
2023, the Company has created a provision for impairment in its investment in GMR Bajoli Holi Private Limited for Rs. 5.16 crores ( March 3 1, 2022, Rs. 33.37 crores). 

5. Change in the Name of "GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited" from "GMR Infrastructure Limited" with effect from September 15,2022. 

6. The composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement for amalgamation of GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited (GTAEL) and GMR Tambaram Tindivanam 
Expressways Limited (GTTEL) with GMR Highways Limited was approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench vide its order dated August 03, 2022 
with Appointed date of April 01, 2019. The said Tribunal order was filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Company, GTAEL and GTTEL on August 11,2022 thereby the 
Scheme becoming effective on that date. 

(This space has been intentionally leji blank) 
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36 J1» Summll!)' of balances with the above related parties are as rouows: 
Balances as at Date 

Investments in subsidiary, associates and Joint Ventures 
Investments in Unquoted Equity Share 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Tenninal Management India Private Limited 
Travel Food services (Delhi Tenninal 3) Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi A viation Services Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation FueL Facility Private Limited 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture 
Digi Yatra Foundation 

Provision for dimunition in value or Non-Current Investments 
Joint Ventures 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

Trade Receivables (including marketing fund) 
Intermediate Holding Company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holding Company 
GMR Airports Limited 
Associates 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiaty companies of the ultimate! Intermediate holding company) 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Fonnerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 

GMR Highways Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
Raxa Security Services Limited 
GMR Consulting services Private Limited 
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 
GMR Green Energy Limited 
Fellow associates (including associate companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding company) 
GMR Tenaga Operations And Maintenance Private Limited 

Joint Ventures 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 
Joint Venture of Member of a Group of which DIAL is a Member 
GMR Warora Energy Limited 
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 
GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation 

Other Financial Assets - Current 

UnbiJIed receivables - Current 
Intermediate Holding Company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holding Company 
GMR Airports Limited 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Tenninal Management India Private Limited 

Travel Food services§ hi enninal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures .. " :of 
Delhi Duty Free SerVIces Privat 'ted 
Delhi Aviation Sertices Private LI ' .~ 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

29.12 29.12 

5.60 5.60 
9.22 9.22 

40.64 40.64 

12.50 12.50 
39.92 39.92 
42.64 42.64 

108.33 108.33 

0.00 0.00 

38.53 33.37 

1.20 0.03 

0.10 1.34 

0.65 1.42 

0.19 0.09 

- 0.25 

0.14 0.06 

1.14 4.71 

0.78 1.87 

2.84 2.96 
0.02 -
0.26 0.12 

0.01 -
2.77 2.44 
0.03 -

0.01 -
0.14 -

4.38 4.32 

2.83 2.83 
4.14 \.77 
0.07 0.14 

0.02 

0.01 
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36 (b) Summary of balances with the above related parties are as follows: 
Balances as at Date 

Feilow subsidiaries (includin2 subsidian: com~anies oftbe ultimate! Intermediate H21din2 COmRanl:} 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Teclmic Limited) 

GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
Entemrises in res~ect of which the coml!an~ is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Other Financial Assets - Non Current 
Other recoverable from related I!arties 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Tenninal Management India Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Entemrises in resl!ect of which the coml!an~ is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 
DIGI Yatra Foundation 
Fellow subsidiaries (includin2 subsidiaa coml!anies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holdin2 Coml!an~} 
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 
GMR Pochanpalli Expres~ways Limited 

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 
Intermediate Holdin2 Coml!an~ 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Joint Ventures 
GMR 8ajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

Provision against advance to AAI I!aid under I!rotest 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Other Financial· Assets - Current 
Non- Trade Receivables (includin2 marketin2 fund) 

Intermediate Holdin2 Coml!any 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holdin2 Coml!anl: 
GMR Airports Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (includin2 subsidiaa comllanies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holdin2 Coml!an~} 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
Joint Venmre of Member of a Groul! of which DIAL is a Member 
GMR Warora Energy Limited 
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Ente!]!rises in resllect of which the coml!an~ Is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India· 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

0.01 0.02 
0.06 0.02 

0.01 0.01 

- 0.60 
1.86 -

1.01 0.01 

- 0.10 
0.09 0.08 

0.05 0.05 
0.11 0.10 
0.11 0.59 

489.42 489.42 
0.17 0.16 

0.27 0.27 

- 0.02 

2.22 -

62.31 6.82 

489.42 489.42 

0.02 -

- 0.05 

0.08 0.11 
- 0.02 

84.50 -

0.46 0.46 
0.37 0.10 
0.57 0.57 

28.55 3.92 

- 0.45 

13.23 7.94 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

36 (b) Summary of balances with the above related parties are as follows: 
Balances as at Date 

Trade payable (including marketing fund)-Current 
Intermediate Holding Company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holding Company 
GMR Airports Limited 

Associates 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Enterprises where significant influence of key Management personnel or their relative exists 
GMR Varalaksmi Foundation 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
Raxa Security Services Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 
GEOKNO India Private Limited 
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited 
GMR Power and Urban Infra limited 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority ofIndia 
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide 

Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost- Current 

Security Deposits from trade concessionaires - current 
Holding Company 
GMR Airports Limited 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Tenninal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Fonnerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 

Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost- Non Current 
Security Deposits from trade concessionaires - non current 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

- 0.70 

37.80 8.68 

- 0.25 
0.11 0.28 

- 0.03 

- 0.01 

2.09 7.70 
0. \0 0.01 

1.59 0.04 

- 0.01 
0.01 -
0.02 om 
0.02 -

107.53 17.02 
35.35 -

663.57 576.58 

0.01 0.01 

0.01 0.01 

- 0,01 

0.87 0.77 

0.46 0.61 

1.50 1.19 
- 15.04 

0.11 0.11 

- 4.13 

0.32 0.22 

19.28 43.69 
204 .32 180.30 

55.97 45 .05 
0.73 0.64 

14.71 13. 11 
5.40 4.83 

1.08 -
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36 (b) Summary of balances with the above related parties areas follows: 
Balances as at Date March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Unearned Revenue - Current 
Current 
Associates 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
FeUow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 

Unearned Revenue - Non-Current 
Non-Current 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited . 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 

Deferred Revenue 
Deferred Income on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost - Current 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (Including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Deferred Revenue 
Deferred Income on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost - Non-Current 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Other Liabilities 

~ 
Joint Venture 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 

Other Current Liabilities 
Capital creditors - ~ 

Fellow subsidiaries (includin!! subsidiarY conmanies of the ultimate! Intermediate holdin!! comnanv). ~:t0! ~?;>. r t>. 
Raxa Security ~eciic.e.SUmited /1/.q,\~'3 nal-1~r~\ 

0.19 0.20 
0.53 0.22 
0.31 0.33 

0.15 0.13 

·0.01 -
0.01 0.D2 

0.17 0.20 
0.04 0.03 
0.07 0.04 

om 0.01 
0.01 -

0.11 0.11 
8.68 7.59 
1.56 1.59 
0.57 0.58 

0.98 6.31 
13.69 13.48 

- 0.13 

0.01 0.02 
0.24 0.44 

1.29 1.40 ' 
93.97 89.85 
10.02 11.58 

1.11 1.67 

9.23 65.72 
5.16 18.43 

2.92 -

0.09 

-O.~~O~-
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36 (b) Summary of balances with the above related parties are as follows: 
. Balances as at Date 

Other Liabilites- Current 
Advance From Customers- Current 
Associates 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (includlnl:; subsfdiaa comRanies of the ultimate! Intermediate holdinl:; comRan~} 
Raxa Security Services Limited 

Note: Balances below Rs. 50,000 have not been reported in the above disclosure due to rounding off procedures. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

0.02 0.21 

0.25 -
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36 (c) Summary of transactions with the above re ated parties IS as follows! 
Transactions during the period 

Non-current investments 
Write off of Investment 
Subsidiary 
Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited [refer note 35 (UI) (ii) (e)] 

Security Deposits from trade concessionaires 
Security Deposits Received 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Tenninal Management India Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 

Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 

Security Deposits from trade concessionaires 
Security Deposits Refunded 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation SelVices Private Limited 

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) 

GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Marketing Fund Billed 
Associates 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 

Marketing Fund Utilised 
Associates 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 

Capital Work inProgress 
Associates 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
Raxa Security Services Limited 

Non-aeronautical revenue 
Intermediate Holding Company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holding Company 
GMR Airports Limited 
Joint Venture 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free SelVices Private Limited 
Associates 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Delhi Airport ParkinJl Services Private Limited 

-

March 31, 2023 

19.00 

0.07 

0.08 

2.79 

0.17 

87.46 
15.17 

0.33 

1.99 

15.74 

0.55 

0.02 

10.98 
0.74 

0.62 

1.54 

38.68 
0.39 

496.49 

166.40 

269.70 

48.82 
73 .13 

March 31 2022 

0.10 

1.55 

9.08 

4.58 

0.93 

5.97 

0.70 
0.14 

8.54 
0.74 

2.20 

1.43 

38.61 
7.46 

209.15 

96.05 

270.90 

23 .69 
14.84 

6/~'~ ~. <? 
C~ 3r! \, f';d I 

* I'ICCOUIi:J' *} 
<Sl /,:) / 
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CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amolints in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

36 (c) Summary of transactions with the above re ated parties IS as follows: 

Transactions durln2 the period 

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Green Energy Limited 

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 
Raxa Security Services Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
GMR Power And Urban Infra Limited 

Fellow associates (including associate "companies of the ultimate! Intermediate bolding company)­
GMR Tenaga Operations and Maintenance Private Limited 

Joint Venture of Member of a Group of which DIAL is a Member 
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 
Aeronautical Revenue 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Other Income 

Dividend Income on Non-current Investments 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Associastes 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 

Profit on relinQusbment ofassets" rights 
Fellow subsidiaries (incIudwl!. subsidiary companies of the ulM.tel Intermediate holding company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Discounting Income 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultlmatel Intermediate bolding company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Non-aeronautical - Income on Security Deposits 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Deihi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (Including "subsidiary £ompanies of the ultimatel Intermediate holding company) 

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Other Revenue 
Interest Income-Others 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 

March 31, 2023 

0.09 " 
2.42 
0.03 
1.22 
1.25 
0.45 
8.36 
2.35 

0.01 

2.43 

0.05 

O.oJ 

1.81 

81.84 
3.50 

43.68 
4.20 

59.57 

6.50 

0.11 
1.65 
8.72 
0.63 

1.85 
13.87 
0.42 

0.03 
0.42 

0.04 

March 31 2022 

0.08 
2.26 

-
1.08 
1.16 
0.28 

-
0.58 

-

2.26 

0.03 

0.01 

13.95 
2.75 

23.30 

0.11 
1.64 
7.98 
0.63 

6.40 
13.73 
1.56 

0.03 

-

0.06 



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63()33DL2()06PLC 146936 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise slated) 

36 (c) Summary of transactions with the above re ated parties is as follows: 
Transactions during the period March 31, 2023 March 31 2022 
Key managerial Remuneration paid/payable 
Short-term employee benefits* 
Managerial Remuneration 

Annual Fee 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Provision against advance to AAI paid under protest 
Enterprises In respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India [refer note 35 (I) (h) & (i)] 

Bad Debts Wrltteo orr 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 

Expenditure write back 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding company) 
GMR Power And Urban Infra Limited 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Consultancy Chah!es 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 

Finance Cost-Interest expense on financial liability carried at amortised cost 

Associates 
Delhi AirpOrt Parking Services Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Donations! CSR Expenditure 
Enterprises where significant influence of key Management personnel or their relative exists 
GMR Varalaksmi Foundation 

Finance Cost 
Interest on Revenue share 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is a loint venture 
Airports Authority of India . 

Rent 
Enterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Employee benefit expenses 
Training expenses 
Holding company 
GMR Airports Limited 
Enterprises In respect of which the company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Manpower hire charges 

20.61 20.08 

1,857.67 192.70 

43.21 

0.04 

0.01 

0.33 

0.04 

0.08 om 
1.69 1.51 
5.85 5.20 
0.64 0.61 

3.07 4.79 
22.36 - 19.84 

0.42 1.58 

0.03 0.Q3 

0.41 -

3.00 1.77 

5.13 

0.23 

0.28 

0.01 

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate Holding Company) ~ - --... 

GMR Airport ~e)Q~ Limited ;,i~ ~~onS~ 63.68 e~~.55.58 
Raxa Securi!f.geDdc~ £i'tnited tp- ,,' ~ 1.5 "/ ~6'-
,. Manage;:iaJ,remuneratiOrl:~i(ludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, since these are provid~ ~n~e basis of ~ ~rial v~uiftr0rt~~a~lp~a~y 
as a whofe~- .l _ \<;:\ \ IX'. 11) fl' 1f1 I .. r\CC:J '.! ' l ~<\I \tS} ' II . 
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Delhi International Airport Limited 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

36 (c) Summary 0 transactions with the above re ated parties Is as follows: 
Transactions duriq the period 

Operations-Repairs & Maintenance-Buildings 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Operations-Repairs & Maintenance-Landscape 
Fellow subsidiaries (includine; subsidiary companies of the ultimatel Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Airport Operator fees 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint ventUre 
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide 
Corporate Cost Allocation 
Intermediate Holding Company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holding Company 
GMR Airports Limited 

Security related expenses 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
Raxa Security Services Limited 

Hire Charges-Eguipments 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
Raxa Security Services Limited 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Utility Expenses 
Electricity charges 
Joint Ventures 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 

Electricity charges recovered 
Intermediate Holding Company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Associates 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Tenninal Management India Private Limited 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Tenninal 3) Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries (includine; subsidiary companies of the ultimate! Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Aviation Private Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Epgineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Teclmic Limited)3 

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 

GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Raxa Security Services Limited 

GMR Power And Urban Infra Limited 

Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority ofIndia 
Joint Venture of Member of a Group of which DIAL is a Member 
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 

Water charges recovered 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 

Associates _ S ~_ 
Delhi Airpqrt ParKiilg~rv1" Private Limited 
Travel Fo~ Services (Del : . fIDinal 3) Private Limited 
Celebi D~Cargo Ta:rmina Ijmagement India Private Limited 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.03 

7.76 

64.67 50.14 

20.65 26.49 

47.68 39.84 

23.80 25.94 

0.04 

0.14 

118.61 88.65 

0.03 0.05 

9.56 9.28 
1.56 12.44 

3.80 3.05 
8.45 9.21 
4.19 3.76 

12.29 8.96 

- 0.01 

0.17 0.03 

0.01 0.Q2 

0.04 0.03 

14.05 -
0.02 -
0.02 -

14.58 14.75 

0.23 0.12 

-
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

36 (c) Summary of transactions with the above re ated parties IS as follows: 
Transactions durin2 the period 
Fellow Subsidiaries( includiDli: subsidiary companies of the ultimate Holding Company) 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
Enterprises in respect of which the .Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Common Area Maintenance Charges recovered 
Joint Ventures 
DeUli Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Associates 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 

Airport Entry Fees Recovered 
Associates 
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
BID Award Cost Recovered 
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the u1timatel Intermediate Holding Company) 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 

Recovery of Collection Charges 
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture 
Airports Authority of India 

Directors' sitting fees 
Key Management Personnel 
Mr. R.S.S.L.N. Bhaskarudu 
Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa 
Mr. Anil Kumar Pathak 
Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran 
Mr. G. Subba Rao 
Mr. Srinivas Bomrnidala 
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 
Mr. K. Vinayak Rao 
Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru 
Mr. M. Ramachandran 
Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao 
Ms.Vidya Vaidyanathan 
Ms. Bijal Tushar Ajinkya 
Ms. Vidya 

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related parties 
Intermediate Holding company 
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 
Holding company 
GMR Airports Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 
Associates 
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 
TIM.Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 
DIGI Yatra Fo.undation 
Joint Ventures of member of a Group of which DIAL is a member 
GMR Warora Energy Limited 
GMR KamaJanglf'Ener.~ Limited 
GMR Mega~d~-CEBi:r A.'isPort Corporation 

-

March 31 2023 

0.02 
0.36 

4.96 

0.09 

0.78 

0.01 
0.05 

0.03 
0.02 

0.50 

5.24 

-
0.03 
0.01 

-
-

0.01 
0.01 
0.01 
0.06 
0.05 
0.05 

-
0.02 
0.01 

0.01 

0.33 

0.53 
0.64 
0.38 

0.87 
0.82 
0.60 
0.63 

-

March 31 2022 

0.01 

1.40 

0.02 
0.04 
0.01 
0.02 
0.01 
0.01 
0.01 

-
0.02 
0.04 
0.02 

-
-
-

0.02 

2.21 

1.15 
0.61 
0.09 

0.81 
0.81 
0.63 
0.63 
0.01 

0.05 0.02 -



Delhi International Airport Limited 
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the yl!ar ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) 

36 ( ) S c ummaryo f I h h b d ti f II transactions w t tea ove re ate par es IS as 0 ows: 
Transactions during the period 
Fellow Subsidiaries{ includinll subsidiar)! comeanles of the ultimate Holdinll Comean)!) 
GMR Highways Limited 
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 
GMR Consulting services Private Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Airport Developers Limited 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 

Exeenses incurred b)! related I!artil:s on behalf of Coml!an)! 
Holdinll Comean)! 
GMR Airports Limited 
Associates 
Travel Food Services (Deihl Terminal 3) Private Limited 
Joint Ventures 
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 

Fellow subsldi!lries {includinll subsidiar)! comQanies !If the ultimate/Intermediate Holdinll ComQan)!) 
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited 
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 
Kakinada SEZ Limited 
GMR Energy Trading Limited 
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited 
Raxa Security Services Limited 

Exceetiona\ items 
Joint Ventures 
Provision for impairment in value of non-current investment [Refer Note 35 (illXiiXh)] 
Entemrises in res~ct of which th~ Coml!any is a joint ventur~ 
Airports Authority of India 

March 31, 2023 . 

0.04 
0.08 
0.Ql 

0.09 
0.01 

-
-

0.70 

0.25 

-

0.26 
-
-

0.10 
-

0.01 

5.16 

32.37 

Note: Transactions below Rs. 50,000 have not been reported in the above disclosure due to rounding off procedures. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 

March 31 2022 

-
-
-
-

0.34 
0.01 

0.32 

0.34 

0.04 

-
0.01 
0.10 

-
0.06 

-

33.37 

-
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) 

Airport Limited (CIAL), DIAL, GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL), Mumbai 
International Airport Limited (MIAL) i.e. 14.8% each. 

36 (d) Interest in significant investment in subsidiary, joint ventures and associates: 

N arne of Entities Relationship Ownership Date of Country of 
interest incorporation incorporation 

Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited [refer 
India note 35 (III) (ii) (e)]* Subsidiary 100.00% May 22, 2007 

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management 
26.00% June 18,2009 India India Private Limited Associate 

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 
Joint Venture 

49.90% July 07, 2009 India 

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private 
49.90% 

February 11, 
India Limited Associate 2010 

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) 
40.00% 

December 04, 
India Private Limited Associate 2009 

TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private 
49.90% June 01, 2010 India 

Limited Associate 
DIGI Yatra Foundation [Refer note 35 (III) 

14.80% 
February 20, 

India 
(ii) (i)] Associate 2019 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private 

Joint Venture 20.14% 
September 11, 

India 
Limited [Refer note 35 (III) (ii) (h)] 2017 

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited Joint Venture 26.00% 
August 11, 

India 
2009 

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited Joint Venture 50.00% June 28, 2007 India 

* During the previous year ended March 31, 2022, Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited had been struck off in -
Registrar of Companies and now stand dissolved. 

Terms and Condition oftransaction with related parties: 

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in ann's length 
transactions. 

Outstanding balances at the reporting date are secured! unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the previous 
year ended March 31,2022, the Company had written off investment in Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited for 
Rs. 0.10 crores as it had been struck off 

During the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company has created a provision for impairment in its investment in 
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited for Rs. 5.16 crores (March 31,2022: 33.37). This assessment is 
undertaken in each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in 
which the related party operates. 

Commitments with related parties: 

The commitments in respect of related parties are provided in note 35(III)(ii) above, forming part of these 
financial statements. 
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Transactions with key management personnel 

The transaction with key management personnel includes the payment of directors sitting fees and managerial 
remuneration, which are provided in note 36(c) above. There are no other transactions with Key management 
personnel. 

37. Segment Information 

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is operation of airport and providing allied 
services and operates in a single business segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial 
statements relate to the Company's single business segment. For Revenue disaggregated by primary 
geographical markets refer note 42 (m). . 

Major customers: Revenue from one customer of the Company exceeding 10% of the total revenue in current 
year is Rs. 496.49 crores (March 31, 2022: Nil). 

38. Fair Values 

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities (except for certain other financial assets and liabilities, 
i.e. "Instruments carried at fair value") appearing in the financilil statements is reasonable approximation of fair 
values. Such financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are disclosed below: 

Carrying value Fair value 

Particulars As at As at As at As at 
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 

2023 2022 2023 ·2022 
Financial Assets 
Investments 249.45 254.61 249.45 254.61 
Current investment 914.25 775.65 914.25 775.65 
Trade receivables 76.80 158.98 76.80 158.98 
Cash and cash Eluivalents 279.09 1,282.93 279.09 1,282.93 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 47.27 216.63 47.27 216.63 
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 1,847.57 1,372.85 1,847.57 1,372.85 
Total 3,414.43 4,061.65 3,414.43 4,061.65 
Financial Liabilities 
(carried at amortised cost) 
Trade payables 446.04 306.64 446.04 306.64 
Borrowings ( current and non-current) 12,614.18 10,982.76 12,614.18 10,982.76 
Lease liabilities ( current and non-current) 12.58 14.40 12.58 14.40 
Other financial liabilities ( current and non-current) 2,866.19 2,603.41 2,889.31 2,628.46 
Total 15,938.99 13,907.22 15,962.11 13,932.27 

The management of the company assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, 
other current financial assets and other current financial liabilities approximate carrying amounts largely due to 
short term maturities of these instruments. 

The Fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated state, the 
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value~. _-. 
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Assumption used in estimating the fair values: 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be 
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The 
following methods and assumption were used to estimate the fair values: 

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial 
institutions with investment grade credit ratings: ·Derivatives are valued using vaiuation techniques, which 
employs the use of market observable Inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward 
pricing and swap models, using present value cl:i1culations. The models incorporate various inputs including the 
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective 
currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves 
of the underlying commodity. As at March 31, 2023, the marked-to-market value of derivative asset positions is 
net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. 

39. Fair value hierarchy 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the CQmpany's assets and liabilities. 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023: 

Fair value measurement using 
Date of Total Market prices Significant SigJiificant 

valuation in active observable unobservable 
markets inputs inputs 
(Levell) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Assets measured at 
fair value 

Investment in mutual March 31, 2023 408.39 408.3<} - -
fund 

Cash flow hedges-
Call spread option 

March 31, 2023 1,065.92 - 1,065.92 -
Total 1,474.31 408.39 1,065.92 -

There have been no transfers between Levell, Level 2 and Level 3 dunng the year. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022 

Fair value measurement usin2 
Date of Total Market prices Significant 

valuation in active observable 
markets inputs 
(Level Il (Level 2) 

Assets measured at 
fair value 

Investment in mutual March 31 , 2022 357.90 357.90 -
fund 

Cash flow hedges- March 31, 2022 723.01 - 723.01 
Call spread o..ption 
Total 1,080.91 357.90 723.01 

There have been no transfers between Levell, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year. 

40. Risk Management 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Significant 
unobservable 

. inputs 
JLevel3J 

-

-

-

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, security 
deposits and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's 
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include 
loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The 
Company also enters into derivative transactions. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management 
oversees the management of these risks. The Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate 
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the 
Company's policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out 
by senior management team that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company's 
policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews 
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below: 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments 
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments. 

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, .2022: . 

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating 
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all 
constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place at March 31, 2023. 

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other 
. post-retirement obligations; prOVisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations. The 
analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 35 (I). 
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The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 

• The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective 
market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and 
March 31, 2022. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates as 
the borrowings of the Company are at fixed rate of interest. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates 
relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings taken from banks. However, the Company has hedged its 
borrowing through call spread option. 

Cash flow hedges 

Foreign exchange call spread options measured at fair value through OCI are designated as hedging instruments 
in cash flow hedges to hedge the USD INR conversion rate volatility with reference to the cash outflows on 
settlement of its borrowings designated in USD. 

The fair value of foreign exchange call spread option varies with the changes in foreign exchange rates and 
repayment of future premium. 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

Cash flow hedges-Call spread option 1,065.92 - 723.01 -

As at March 31, 2023 the USD spot rate is above the USD call option strike price for all call spread options of 
USD 1,022.26 million. Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 652.16 crores of foreign exchange loss has been 
transferred to Cash flow hedge reserve from statement of profit and loss to neutralize the impact of foreign 
exchange loss included in standalone statement of profit and loss. 

As at March 31, 2022, the USD spot rate is above the USD call option strike price for all call spread options of 
USD 1,022.26 million. Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 304.84 crores of foreign exchange loss has been 
transferred to Cash flow hedge reserve from statement of profit and loss to neutralize the impact of foreign 
exchange loss included in standalone statement of profit and loss. Further, net loss of Rs 1.05 crores has been 
reclassified to standalone statement of profit and loss on settlement ofUSD 288.75 million call spread option. 
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Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange 
rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit! (loss) before tax is due to 
changes in the fair value of liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. The impact on the 
Company's pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash 
flow hedges and Interest rate swap. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies 
is not material. 

March 31 2023 March 31, 2022 

Impact onprofiti loss) before tax 

USD Sensitivity 

INRJUSD- Increase by 5% (2.25) (2.90) . 

INRIUSD- decrease by 5% 2.25 2.90 

EURO Sensitivity 

INRJEURO- Increase by 5% (0.23) (0.15) 

·INRIEURO- decrease by 5% 0.23 0.15 

GBP Sensitivity 

INRIGBP Increase ~5% _(0.01) _{0.02) 

INRIGBP- decrease by 5% 0.01 0.02 

AED Sensitivity 

INRI AED Increase by 5% (0.04) -
INRIAED- decrease by 5% 0.04 -

AUD SensitiviD' 

INRICHF Increase by 5% 10.00) -
INRI CHF - decrease by 5% 0.00 -

CAD Sensitivity 

INRICAD Increase by 5% (0.01) -
INRI CAD - decrease by 5% 0.01 -

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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Liquidity risk 

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company's objective is to maintain 
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and 
finance leases. There is no debt which will mature in less than one year at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 
22.00 crores) based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The Company 
assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments: 

On , Less 
3 to 12 

Particulars 
demand 

than 3 
months 

1 to 5 years > 5 years Total 
months 

As at March 31, 
2023 
Borrowings * 
(including current - - - 8;551.30 4,108.50 12,659.80 
maturities) 
Trade payables - 446.04 - - - 446.04 
Lease liability - 1.31 3.74 9.76 - 14.81 
Other fmancial 

20.44 1,201.89 334.20 350.42 3,028.67 4,935.62 
liabilities 
Total 20.44 1,649.24 337.94 8,911.48 7,137.17 18,056.27 

As at March 31, 
2022 
Borrowings* 
(including current - - - 7,218.02 3,789.62 11,007.64 
maturities) 
Current borrowings - 22.00 - - - 22.00 
Trade payables - 306.64 - - - 306.64 
Lease liability , - 1.34 3.83 11.67 - 16.84 
Other financial 

31.15 1,164.74 250.66 328.12 3028.24 4,802.91 
liabilities 
Total 31.15 1,494.72 254.49 7,557.81 6,817.86 1~156.03 

'. *For range of interest, repayment schedule and secunty detaIls refer note 16. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and 
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. 

Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by Company subject to the Company's established policy, 
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed 
based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this 

,assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any services to major customers are 
generally covered by bank guarantee or other fonns of credit assurance. 
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Financial instrum.ents and cash deposits- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is 
managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of 
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counter party. 
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's senior management on regular basis, and may be 
updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate 
financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments. 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 3 I, 2023 
and March 31, 2022 is the carrying amounts of Trade Receiyables. 

CoHateral 

As at March 31, 2023 the security provided to NCD's, bond holders, hedge providers and working capital 
facilities is as below; 

(i) A first ranking pari passu charge/ assignment of all insurance policies, contractors' guarantees and liquidated 
damages to the maximum extent permissible under the OMDA and the Escrow Account Agreement; 

(ii) A first ranking pari passu charge/assignment of all the rights; titles, permits, approvals and interests of the 
Borrower in, to and in respect of the Project Documents, in accordance with and to the maximum extent 
permitted under the OMDA and the Escrow Account Agreement; 

(iii) A first ranking pari passu charge on all the revenues / receivables of the Borrower (excluding dues to the 
Authority) subject to the provisions of the Escrow Account Agreement and the OMDA. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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41. Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity 
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital 
management is to maximise the shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions 
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company . 
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total net debt divided by total equity plus total net debt. The 
Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 90%, which is reviewed at end of each financial year. 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Long tenn borrowings (including current maturities) 12,614.18 10,960.76 
Current borrowings - 22.00 

Total Borrowings (I) 12,614.18 10,982.76 

Less: 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 279.09 1,282.93 

(ii) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 47.27 216.63 

(iii) Current investments 914.25 775.65 

Total cash & investments (II) 1,240.61 2,275.21 

Net debts (A)= I-II 11,373.57 8,707.55 

, 

Share Capital 2,450.00 2,450.00 

Other Equity (674.48) (77.89) 

Total Equity (B) 1,775.52 2,372.11 

Total equity and total net debts (C=A+B) 13,149.08 11,079.66 

Gearing ratio (%) (AlC) 86.50% 78.59% 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to 
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital 
structure requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and 
borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 
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42. Other Disclosures 

(a) AERA DF Order No. 28/2011-12, 30/2012-13 and AERA tariff order No. 03/2012-13 and 57/2020-21 
on determination of Aeronautical Tariff; issued on November 14,2011, December 28,2012, April 24, 
2012 and December 30, 2020 respectively 

AERA has issued tariff order no 57/2020-21 for third control period ("CP3") starting from April 1, 2019 
to March 31, 2024 on December 30, 2020 allowing the Company to continue with BAC+ 1 0% tariff for 
the balance period of third control period. AERA has also allowed compensatory tariff in lieu of Fuel 
Throughput Charges w.eJ. February 01, 2021 for the balance period of third control period, The Company 
had also filed an appeal against some of AERA's decision in third control period order on January 29, 
2021 with TDSA T. 

The Company's appeal against the second control period ("CP2") is pending before the TDSA T and the 
same is still to be heard which shall be heard in due course. Also, the Company in respect of the Company 
order against first Control period appeal dated April 23,2018 has filed a limited appeal in the Hon'ble 
Supreme Court of India on July 21, 2018 and same is still to be heard. . 

TDSAT at the request of AERA and concurred by the Company has agreed and tagged CP2 appeal with 
CP3 appeal. The matter is being sub judice at TDSAT. 

(b) The Company had a receivable ofRs. 28.58 crores as at March 31, 2022 (including unbilled receivables) 
from Air India Limited and its subsidiaries namely Indian Airlines Limited, Airline Allied Services Limited 
and Air India Express Limited collectively referred as 'Air India'. The Air India is privatized w.e.f. January 
27, 2022 and control is transferred to Tata Sons by Government of India. During the year ended March 31, 
2022, the Company had received Rs. 148.16 crores (including GST) towards interest agreed to be paid by 
Air India Limited. Pursuant to the interest settlement with Air India during the previous year ended March 
31,2022, the company had reversed interest receivable ofRs 19.90 crores in statement of profit & loss and 
shown as part of exceptional item. In view of continuous reduction in the overdue quarter on quarter, the 
Company considers its due from Air India as good and fully recoverable. 

(c) Particulars of un-hedged and un-discounted foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date are . 
as under: . 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Particulars Amount Currency Foreign Amount Currency Foreign 
(Rs. in Currency (Rs. In Currency 
crores) in crores crores) in crores 

Trade Pay abies 4.64 EUR 0.05 2.92 EUR 0.03 

0.13 GBP 0.00 0.43 GBP 0.00 

12.l0 USD 0.15 1.92 usn 0.03 

0.05 AUD 0.00 .0.04 AUD 0.00 

0.79 AED 0.04 0.03 AED 0.00 

0.19 CAD 0.00 - CAD -
Other Current Financial 

32.96 USD 0.40 55.61 usn 0.73 Liabilities 
.G··rQ~: . - #~~ Is; 'C!? ~~~ ~~ . ~9~·.~ 
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CI . osmg exc h t . R ange ra es ID s: 
Curren~ March 31,2023 
EUR 89.443 
GSP 101.648 
SGD 61.793 
USD 82.17 
ADD 55.025 
AED 22.373 
CAD 60.668 

(d) Additional information: 

i) Earnings in foreign currency (On accrual basis, excluding GST) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Aeronautical Services (Revenue from 70.03 
airlines) 

ii) elF value of imports (On accrual basis) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31. 2023 

Import of capital goods 38.28 
Import of stores and spares 1.90 
Total 40.18 

March 31, 2022 
84.220 
99.455 
55.970 
75.793 
56.743 · 
20.635 
60.490 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

25.18 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

0.94 
0.90 
1.84 

iii) Expenditure in foreign currency charged to statement of profit & loss (On accrual basis) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 
Interest on borrowings . 259.70 330.97 
Professional and consultancy expenses 16.52 15.87 

Finance costs - 0.89 

Other expenses 1.91 0.88 
Travelling and conveyance 1.26 2.73 
Total 279.39 351.34 

iv) Expenditure in foreign currency capitalised! debited in borrowings/ debited in other borrowing cost to the 
extent not amortised (On accrual basis) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year emled 
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Interest on borrowings 271.18 253.81 
Professional and consultancy expenses 5.98 5.94 
Finance costs (Otlier borrowing cost 
including amount debited in borrowings/ 

0.17 debited in other borrowing cost to the -

extent not amortised) 
Total 277.16 259.92 
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v) . Consumption of stores and spares during the year: 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

% Amount 

Imported 6.92 2.05 

Indigenous 93.08 27.55 

Total 100.00 . 29.60 

vi) Consumption of capital spares during the year: 

Particulars 
For the year' ended 

March 31, 2023 
% Amount 

Imported 61.19 1.34 

Indigenous 38.81 0.85 
Total 100.00 2.19 

For the year ended 
March 31 2022 

% Amount 

4.22 1.02 

95.78 23.16 

100.00 24.18 

For the year ended 
March 31 2022 

% Amount 
60.52 1.21 

39.48 0.79 
100.00 2.00 

(e) The Company has received Advance Development Costs (ADC) from various Developers at Commercial 
Property District towards facilitating the development of common infrastructure there in. As per the term of 
the agreement, the Company will facilitate the development of common infrastructure upon receipt of 
advance towards development cost in accordance with the instructions and specifications in the agreement. 
Further, the Company has no right to escalate the development cost and in case the Company towards 
development of any infrastructure facility does not utilize any portion of the advance development cost, the 
same shall be returned to the Developers upon earlier of the expiry of the initial term of agreement or upon 
terniination of the development agreement. The status of fund balance is as below: 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
ADC Funds Received * 953.85 848.85 
Funds Utilized for Common lnfrastructure 689.80 637.39 
Development (including refund of ADC) 
Fund Balance disclosed under "other 264.05 211.46 
liabilities" 

* During the year March 31, 2023, the company has received Rs 105 crores (March 31,2022: Rs. 168.71 
crores) for common infra development from Developers. 

(I) Based on the legal opinion taken, the management is of the view that the Annual Fee payable to AAI should 
be based upon "Revenue" as defined under OMDA instead of on Gross Receipts credited to the statement 
of profit and loss (with certain exclusions). The matter was in dispute with the AAl. The Company had 
received the award of arbitral tribunal on July 16, 2022. Pursuant to the award, AAI inter alia is required to 
amend the scope of Independent Auditor to enable the determination of amount of excess annual fee paid 
by the Company from June 21, 2015 to the date of arbitral award and such determination was directed to 
be completed within 3 months from the date of award. However, AAI has instead filed a petition with 
Hon'ble Delhi High Court under section 34 of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 for setting aside 
the Arbitral Award. Arguments were heard on Feb., 03, 2023, on interim stay application filed by AAI and 
the hon'ble court in the interim has provided that while the process to be undertaken by the Independent 
Auditor in terms of majority award in respect of claim no. 78 (d) shall continue, its fmdings shall not be 
given effect to nor shall refunds became payable in terms thereof till the final disposal of the matter. All 
liabilities of parties for the period prior to the present order shall continue as per the revenue sharing 
understanding which prevailed prior to the impugned award being rendered. 
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DIAL has partly concluded its arguments which will further continue on next date of hearing scheduled for 

26 May, 2023. 

(g) The Company is collecting "Marketing Fund" at a specified percentage from various concessionaires as per 
the agreement with respective concessionaires and to be utilized towards sales promotional activities as 
defined in such agreements in accordance with the Marketing Fund policy adopted by the Company. As at 
March 31, 2023, the Company has accounted for Rs. 229.23 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 196.30 crores) 
towards such· Marketing Fund and has incurred expenditure amounting to Rs. 183.48 crores (March 31, 
2022: Rs. 155.66 crores) (net of income on temporary investments) till March 31, 2023 from the amount 
so collected. The balance amount ofRs. 45.74 crores pending utilization as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 
2022: Rs. 40.63 crores) against such sales promotion activities is included under "Other current liabilities" 
as specific fund to be used for the purposes to be approved by the Marketing fund committee constituted 
for this purpose as per Marketing Fund Policy. 

(h) The Company is of the view that certain income/ credits arising on adoption of Ind-AS were not in 
contemplation of parties in April 2006 when this Concession Agreement i.e. OMDA was signed / entered. 
Further, these income/credits in Statement of Profit and Loss do not represent receipts from business 
operations from any external sources and therefore, these incomes/credits should not form part of 
"Revenue" as defined in OMDA for the purpose of calculating monthly annual fee (MAF) payable to AAI. 
Accordingly, the Company, based on legal opinion has provided the MAF to AAI based on Revenue as per 
the Ind AS financial statements after adjusting such incomes/credits. Detail of such incomes / credits are as 
under: 

D.escription incomes forming part of For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Construction income from commercial property bther operating income 
developers 32.84 9.11 
Discounting on fair valuation of deposits taken pther operating income 
from commercial property developers 44.01 36.40 
Discounting on fair valuation of deposits taken ~ale of services - Non 
from concessionaires Aeronautical 69.88 71.41 
Discounting on profit on relinquishment of Other income 
assets rights 40.43 -
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair pther income 
value through profit and loss· 1.09 -
Interest income on financial asset carried at pther income 
amortised cost 6.50 -
Discounting on fair valuation of <kPosi~sgiven pther income 0.72 0.98 

Other income ofRs. 59.57 crores (Rs. 100 crores as per erstwhile IGAAP) towards profit on relinquishment 
of assets rights is also excluded from revenue for the calculation of annual fees for the year ended March 31, 
2023. 

However, the Company has accrued revenue on straight line basis, in accordance with Ind AS 116, Annual fee 
on this revenue is also provide4 which is payable to AAI in future years on actual realization of revenue as 
below: 

. .~. 
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Description For the year ended 
March 31 2023 

Revenue from operations 259.52 
Annual fees to AAI 119.36 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

419.00 
192.70 

Further, the Company has also provided the "Airport Operator Fees" included in "Other expenses" based on 
"Gross revenue" for the last financial year, after excluding the income/ credits from above transactions. 

(i) As per the transfer pricing rules prescribed under the Income tax act, 1961, the Company is examining the 
domestic and international transactions and documentation in respect thereof to ensure compliance with the 
said rules. The management does not anticipate any material adjustment with regard to the transactions during 
year ended March 31, 2023. 

(j) The Hon'ble Orissa High Court vide Judgement in W.P. No.20463/2018, in the case of Safari Retreats Private 
Limited, observed that the GST provisions under Section. 17(5) (c) and (d) W.r.t input tax credit eligibility are 
not in line with the objective of the Act to allow seamless eredit where such input services are used to provide 
taxable output services and accordingly, it was held that if an assessee is required to discharge GST on the · 
rental income, it is eligible to avail the Input Tax Credit (ITC) of GST paid on the goods or services or both 
by a taxable person for construction of an immovable property, when they are used in the course or 
furtherance of business. The Company (the company) is engaged in the operation of Airport, it renders taxable 
Output Services in the nature of Landing and Parking Charges, hanger services, Charges for use of Teiminal 
facilities, refuelling facilities, licensing of space for various aeronautical and non- Aeronautical charges being 
its output supplies which are subject to output GST. Hence, the company in view of the favourable judgment 
of Orissa High Court in the case of Safari Retreats Private Limited DIAL has availed the Input Tax Credit 
accumulated in respect of the Input goods and Services supplied for the construction of Airport facilities as 
part of Phase 3A expansion project and regular operations. Further, department has filed Special leave to 
appeal before Hon'ble Supreme Court of India against the judgement of Hon'ble Orissa High Court CWP 
NO.20463/20 18, where leave has been allowed without Stay of operation of the judgment. Thus relying upon 
the favourable ruling of Orissa High Court which is a binding law and enforceable across all jurisdictions, 
the management decided to avail the Input Tax Credit in the GST Returns and books for the respective 
periods, however, without the utilization of the said the input tax credit, pending the outcome of the judgement 
of Hon'ble Supreme Court oflndia. Further a Writ Petition has also been filed by the company in the matter 
before Delhi High Court on July 10,2020, for ITC claim to be allowed ofGST in respect of the civil works 
i.e. works contract service and goods and services received by the company for construction of immoveable 
property used for providing output taxable supplies. The writ was heard by the Hon'ble High Court on July 
29, 2020 and has issued notice to the respondents. Accordingly, the matter was heard on various dates and 
upon mentioning the Court has directed to list the batch matters for hearing on merits in last week of July,2023 
within first five matters, it may be listed accordingly. Further the intervention application filed by DIAL in 
the main SLP No.26696/ 2019 will be heard together. 

Considering that, the final decision in the SLP No.26696/20 19 filed by Union of India and other connected 
matters, may take longer time, the management has taken a considered view for recognition of the project 
expenditure in tenns of the prudent accounting principles and prevailing circumstances and also in view of 
the fact that various developmental activities under the Phase 3A expansion project are under completion and 
currently being recognised as CWIP, the said expenditure including the value of Input Tax Credit pertaining 
to the Civil Works needs to be capitalised during the period ended March 31,2023. However, the management 
reserves its right to claim ITC in case of favourable decision from the Supreme Court on the above issue. 
Accordingly, GST ITC on civil works amounting to Rs. 997.13 crores accumulated till March 31, 2023 
(March 31, 2022: Rs. 754.78 crores) has been reversed from GST recoverable account and now capitalized 
against the respective assets/capital work in progress in the books on accounts during financial year 2022-23. 
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(k) The Company has billed National Aviation Security Fees Trust ("NASFT") for lease rentals towards the land 
and space provided as barrack accommodation to CISF staff deployed at IGI Airport charging at the rates as 
per the principle defined in the State Support Agreement ("SSA") entered along with OMDA. 

However, NASFT has refused to pay DIAL for the rentals for land and space billed for financial year ended 
March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022 and advised the Company not to raise any invoices towards rentals for 
financial year March 31,2023 citing that rentals are charged at high rate and any expenses incurred by Airport 
operator for construction of such accommodation should be claimed as part of Regulatory Asset Base (RAB). 
DIAL has raised objection on the stand taken by NASFT arbitrarily, which is not in line with SSA. However, 
NASFT has not accepted the submissions made by DIAL and has withheld the payment for land and space 
rentals for the financial years ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2023. 

In view of the above, the Company has decided not to raise any invoices for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023 and has written off the lease receivables pertaining to these areas recognized earlier until financial 
year ended March 31, 2022 and has disclosed the amount of Rs. 54.14 as an "Exceptional item" in these 
financial statements. 

(I) Leases 

Company as lessee 

The Company has taken office and residential space, information technology equipment under lease 
arrangements. Office premises are obtained on lease for terms ranging from 0-10 years and are renewable upon 
agreement of both the Company and the lessor. There are no sub leases. The lease payment for the year 
(excluding taxes) is Rs. 9.96 crores (March 31, 2022 Rs. 6.93 crores). 

Right of use assets: 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Rs. in crore) (Rs. in crore) 
031cning RigM of use asscts 12.26 18.04 
Additions during the year 1.08 -
Modifications during the year 2.70 -
Depreciation during the year (5.24) (5.78) 
Closin2 Ri2ht of use assets 10.80 12.26 

Lease liability: 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(!!s. in crore) ~Rs. in crorel 
O--,,-enin2 Lease liability 14.40 18.01 
Additions 1.02 -
Modifications during the year 2.15 -
Interest for the year 1.34 1.68 
Repayment made durinll; the year (6.331 (5 .291 
Closing Lease liability 12.58 14.40 

Maturity profile of Lease liability: 
Particulars I within 1 year I 1-3 years I 3-5 years I Above 5 years I Total 
Year ended March 31, 2023 
Lease payments I 3.99 I 5.91 I 2.68 I - I 12.58 
Interest payments I 1.06 I 0.98 I 0.19 I - I 2.23 
Year ended March 31, 2022 
Lease payments I 3.89 I 9.35 I 1.16 I - I 14.40 
Interest payments I 1.27 I 1.15 I 0.021 - I 2.44 
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FoUowing amount has been recognised in statement of profit and loss account: 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31 2022 
Depreciation on right of use asset 5.24 5.78 
Interest on lease liabilities 1.34 1.68 
Expenses related to low value assets and short tenn lease (included under 0.27 0.59 
other expenses) 
Total amount recognized in statement of profit & loss account 6.55 8.05 

Operating lease: Company as lessor 

The Company has sub-leased land and space to various parties under operating leases. The leases have varying 
tenns, escalation clauses and renewal rights. 

The lease rentals received during the year (included in note 23) and future minimum rentals receivable under 
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: . 

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022 
Income Received during the year 547.59 493.69 
Receivables on non- cancelable leases 
Not later than one year 564.96 577.68 
Later than one year but not later than five year 2,523.92 2,558.78 
Later than five year 23,351.69 24,559.90 

(m)Revenue 
For the year ended March 31, 2023, revenue from operations includes Rs. 145.50 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 
30.86 crores) from the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period. 

The Company's revenue from operations disaggregated by primary geographical markets is as follows: 

March 31, 2023 
Particulars Aeronautical Non-aeronautical Others Total 
India 937.63 2477.25 575.09 3,989.97 
Outside - - - -
Total 937.63 2477.25 575.09 3989.97 

March 31, 2022 
Particulars Aeronautical Non-aeronautical Others Total 
India 627.40 ] 657.98 628.69 2,914.07 
Outside - - - -
Total 627.40 1~657.98 628.69 ~914.07 

The Company's revenue from operations disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition is as follows: 

March 31, 2023 
Particulars Aeronautical Non-aeronautical Others Total 
Services rendered at a point in time 906.00 - - 906.00 
Services transferred over time 31.63 2,477.25 575.09 ~083.97 
Total 937.63 2477.25 575.09 3,989.97 

March 31, 2022 
Particulars Aeronautical Non-aeronautical Others Total 
Services rendered at a point in time 581.37 - - 581.37 
Services transferred over time 46.03 1657.99 628.69 2332.70 
Total 627.40 1,657.98 628.69 2,914.07 
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Reconciliation of revenue from operation recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price: 

Particulars March 31 2023 March 31, 2022 
Revenue asper contracted price 3,989.97 2,914.07 
Adjustments: 
- Significant financing component - -. 
Total 3,989.97 2,914.07 

(n) The Company had entered into Development agreements with five developers collectively referred as Bharti 
Reality SPY' s ("Developers") on March 28, 2019 ("Effective date") granting the Developers the right during 
the tenu for developing 4.89 million square feet commercial space from the Effective Date subject to the receipt 
of applicable penuits. As per the tenus of Development agreements, the Company was entitled to receive interest 
free refundable security deposit ("RSD"), advance development cost ("ADC") and the annual lease rent ("ALR") 
in certain manner and at certain times as stated in the respective development agreements .. 

With respect to the receipt of applicable penuits, the approval of Concept Master Plan ("CMP") was received 
from Delhi Urban Art Commission (DUAC) in March 2021. Thereafter, a sudden surge in Covid-19 cases 
emerged in India affecting the entire economy. Accordingly, the Company was not in a position to effectuate 
the transaction and seek payment of ALR, balance amount of RSD and ADC from the Developers until August 
2021. 

On August 27, 2021, basis the CMP, the Company had entered into certain modifications W.r.t. area and date 
of commencement of lease rental for the three Developers. As per amended agreements, lease rentals have 
started with effect from September 1, 2021 for modified area of2.73 million square feet (approx.). 

Accordingly, considering the above and the amendment with three Developers as Lease Modification, lease 
receivables (including unbilled revenue) ofRs. 678.04crores accrued until August 2021 shall be carried forward 
to balance lease period, in accordance with recognition and measurement principles under Ind AS 116 "Leases". 
Consequently, the Company has also carried forward the provision of annual fee to AAI of Rs. 211.35 crores 
corresponding to straight lining adjustments of Ind AS 116 which will get adjusted in future in line with Lease 
receivables. 

In respect of Development agreements with two Developers for balance area of 2.16 million square feet 
(approx.), the asset area would be identified by the Company not later than February 28, 2023, as per mutual 
understanding vide agreement dated August 27, 2021. Accordingly, all payments would be due basis the 
hand over of asset area. Pending identification of asset area and effectiveness of lease, the Company had reversed 
the lease receivables (including unbilled revenue) of Rs. 462.33 crores pertaining to these two developers 
recognized earlier until August 2021 in accordance with recognition and measurement pnnciples under Ind AS 
116 "Leases". Further, the Company had also reversed the provision of annual fee to AAI ofRs. 144.l1 crores 
corresponding to the straight lining adjustments of Ind AS 116 recognized earlier until August 2021. Further, 
the Company had also made the required adjustments of RSD as per Ind AS 109, reversing the discounting 
impact amounting to Rs. 6,94 crores in statement of profit & loss. The net amount of Rs. 325.16 crores is 
disclosed as an "Exceptional item" in statement of profit & loss in March 31,2022. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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(0) During the year 2018-19, company had started the construction activities for phase 3A airport expansion as 
per Master Plan. The company has incurred the following costs towards construction of phase 3A works. 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 . 

Cost incurred # 8,113.02 5,343.97 

Capital advance outstanding 337.03 451.29 

Totai Cost (excluding IDC) (A) 8,450.06 5,795.26 

Interest cost during construction (IDe) 1,678.43 1,121.75 

Less:- Income on surplus investments (333.64) (250.03) 

Net IDC (B) 1,344.78 871.72 

Total Cost* (A+B) 9,794.84 6,666.98 

* Out of above, Assets amounting to Rs. 1,691.72 crores (March 31,2022: Rs. 846.88 crores) has been put 
to use for operations as on March 31,2023. 

# During the current year, the Company has capitalized Gst ITC on Civil works related to Phase 3A airport 
expansion availed till March 31,2023 for Rs. 945.81 crores [refer note 42 U) also]. 

The Company has capitalized the following expenses during construction, included in the above, being 
expenses related to phase 3A airport expansion project. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the 
respective notes are net of amounts capitalized by the company. 

Particulars As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Employee benefit expenses 54.83 41.48 

Manpower hire charges 38.91 27.23 

Professional consultancy 6.05 5.43 

Travelling and conveyance 6.58 4.37 

Insurance 4.55 2.91 

Others 10.89 6.07 

Total 121.81 87.49 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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(p) The audited standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 reflected excess of 
current liabilities over current assets ofRs. 560.89 crore and losses from continuing operations after tax 
amounting to Rs. 284.86 crore. The management of the Company is of the view that this is situational 
in nature due to ongoing Phase 3A expansion project, since net worth of the Company is positive and 
management has taken various initiative to further strengthen its liquidity position including raising 
finances from various financial institutions, strategic investors, business plans of the Company and 
other strategic initiatives to meet its financial obligations including for Phase 3A expansion project, to 
improve net current assets and its cash flows in an orderly manner. 

(q) Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included 
in these Financial Statements have been rounded off or truncated as deemed appropriate by the 
management of the Company. 
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